
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, APRIL 15, 2024 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular City Council meeting of April 1, 2024. 

Agenda Revisions 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 

business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on the proposed FY2025 Budget for the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 04/04/24) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the FY2025 Budget for the City of Cedar Falls. 

3. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 
Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 04/09/2024) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project. 

Old Business 

4. Pass Ordinance #3051, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the 
City’s floodplain regulations, upon its third & final consideration. 

1



Page 2 of 3 

5. Pass Ordinance #3052, adopting the Code of Ordinances for the City of Cedar Falls, upon its third & 
final consideration. 

6. Pass Ordinance #3053, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicle, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to the speed limit on certain portions of Center Street, upon its third & final consideration. 

7. Pass Ordinance #3054, amending Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to the Art and Culture Center and Board, upon its second consideration. 

8. Pass Ordinance #3055, amending Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to the Visitors and Tourism Board, upon its second consideration. 

9. Pass Ordinance #3056, amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
Boards and Commissions and Department of Community Development, upon its second 
consideration. 

10. Pass Ordinance #3057, amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
Department of Community Development, upon its second consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

11. Receive and file the City Council Special Meeting minutes of April 1, 2024 relative to the following 
item: 
a) Public hearing on the proposed FY2025 Property Tax Rate for the City of Cedar Falls. 

12. Receive and file communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to the following certified 
lists: 
a) Civil CAD/GIS Technician. 
b) Construction Projects Manager. 

13. Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgement/Settlement Agreement with PMA North Cedar, LLC, 
d/b/a Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, for a first tobacco violation. 

14. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Berk's Main Street Pub, 207 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) ZSAVOOZ, 206 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Happy’s Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 5 day 
permit. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

15. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

16. Resolution of support for the creation of the Cedar Falls Local Housing Trust Fund. 

17. Resolution approving an Application for Tax Abatement under the College Hill Urban Revitalization 
Plan for residential building improvements located at 2007 College Street. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of a High Quality Jobs Program Business Financial 
Assistance Application to the Iowa Economic Development Authority on behalf of LAFORGE, LLC. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing a Community Attraction and Tourism (CAT) Grant Agreement 
between the Enhance Iowa Board and the City of Cedar Falls. 

 

 

2



Page 3 of 3 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC relative to the Main 
Street Reconstruction Project. 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. relative to the Prairie Parkway and 
Viking Road Intersection Improvements Project. 

22. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting May 6, 2024 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2024 Alley Reconstruction 
Project. 

23. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting May 6, 2024 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2024 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project. 

24. Resolution setting May 6, 2024, as the date of public hearing on the proposed amendments to the 
City’s FY2024 Budget. 

Ordinances 

25. Pass an ordinance, amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
Compensation, of Division 6, Utilities Board of Trustees, upon its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

26. Allow Bills and Claims for April 15, 2024. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

Adjournment 

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, APRIL 1, 2024 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR DANIEL LAUDICK PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, 
Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Laudick led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
54700 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Latta that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of March 18, 2024 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54701 - Kim Jensen Jordan, Cedar Falls, spoke on the future of the Sartori hospital site. 
 
  Ashley Halterman, Cedar Falls, commented on Islamophobia and spoke in 

support of Palestine. 
    
54702 - Mayor Laudick announced that in accordance with the public notice of March 26, 

2024, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the West Viking Road 
Reconstruction and Trail Project. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by 
Schultz that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54703 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer II Tolan provided 
an update on the proposed project. There being no one else present wishing to 
speak about the proposed project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and 
passed to the next order of business. 

 
54704 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Schultz that Resolution #23,557, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the West Viking Road Reconstruction and Trail Project, be adopted. 
Following a comment by Councilmember Ganfield, the Mayor put the question on 
the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. 
Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,557 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
54705 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Latta that Ordinance #3051, 

amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the City’s 
floodplain regulations, be passed upon its second consideration. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, 
Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

54706 -   It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Latta that Ordinance #3052, adopting 
the Code of Ordinances for the City of Cedar Falls, be passed upon its second 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

question on the motion and upon the call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, 
Crisman, and Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

 
54707 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that Ordinance #3053, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicle, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to the speed limit on certain portions of Center Street, be passed upon its 
second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon the call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, 
Crisman, and Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

54708 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Schultz that the following items on 
the Consent Calendar be received, filed, and approved: 

  
  Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of March 18, 2024 

relative to the following items: 
a) Discussion on the City's Current Conflict of Interest Disclosure Requirements. 
b) Staff to bring to council a plan to utilize funding allocated in the CIP for FY25 
for proposals for changes to zoning and parking for the College Hill character 
areas 1, 2 and 3 as designated by the College Vision Plan similar to the 
character districts established for the downtown. Note: Priority should be given to 
areas 1, 2 and 3 however the impact and future possible changes to areas 4 and 

 
Receive and file revised bylaws for the Human Rights Commission. 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore’s Pub), 
5307 Caraway Lane, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 
b) Luxe Nail Bar, 5907 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
c) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor 
service - renewal. 
d) The Horny Toad American Bar & Grille, 204 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol 
- renewal. 
e) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class F retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
temporary additional outdoor service area. 
f) The Stuffed Olive and Roxxy, 314-316 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - 
temporary outdoor service/sidewalk café. (April 1 – November 15, 2024) 
g) Tony's La Pizzeria, 407 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
temporary additional outdoor service/sidewalk café. (April 1 – November 15, 
2024) 
h) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street - Plaza, Special Class C retail alcohol 
& outdoor service – 8-month permit. 
i) Spark, 5818 Nordic Drive, Class B retail alcohol - new. 

 Motion carried unanimously.  

54709 -  It was moved by Crisman and seconded by Ganfield to receive and file the 
following resignation of members from Boards and Commissions: 
a) Donna Mallin, Human Rights Commission. 

 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

  Following comments and questions by Councilmembers Latta and Dunn, and 
responses by Mayor Laudick and City Attorney Rogers, the motion carried 
unanimously. 
  

54710 - It was moved by Latta and seconded by Hawbaker that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 Resolution #23,558, approving and authorizing execution of a Cedar Falls 
Utilities Communications Transport Services Agreement with the Municipal 
Communications Utility of the City of Cedar Falls relative to fiber communications 
services. 

 Resolution #23,559, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product 
Agreement for asbestos testing and clearance monitoring services with Hawkeye 
Environmental relative to property located at 523 West 2nd Street. 

 Resolution #23,560, approving and authorizing execution of an Iowa Land 
Recycling Program Environmental Covenant for River Place Properties LC 
relative to the River Place Redevelopment Project. 

 Resolution #23,561, approving and authorizing submission of a grant application 
to the US Department of Energy (DOE) for Energy Efficiency and Conservation 
Block Grant (EECBG) funding. 

 Resolution #23,562, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product 
Agreement with Modus Engineering relative to design services for HVAC 
replacement and temperature control integration at the Public Safety building. 

 Resolution #23,563, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Dave 
Schmitt Construction Co. for the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction 
Project-Phase 2. 

 Resolution #23,564, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Aspro, 
Inc. for the 2024 Street Restoration Project. 

 Resolution #23,565, receiving and filing, and setting April 15, 2024 as the date of 
public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,558 through #23,565 
duly passed and adopted. 

54711 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #23,566, 
setting April 15, 2024, as the date of the public hearing on the proposed FY2025 
Budget for the City of Cedar Falls, be adopted.  Following comments by UNI 
Student Liaison Hackbart, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, 
Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #23,566 duly passed and adopted. 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

54712 -   It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Crisman that Ordinance #3054, 
amending Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to the Art and Culture Center and Board, be passed upon its first consideration. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon the call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.  
Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, and Dunn.  Nay: None.  
Motion carried. 

 
54713 -   It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3055, 

amending Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to the Visitors and Tourism Board, be passed upon its first consideration. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon the call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.  
Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, and Dunn.  Nay: None.  
Motion carried. 
 

54714 -   It was moved by Latta and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3056, amending 
Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Boards and 
Commissions and Department of Community Development, be passed upon its 
first consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon the call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, 
Crisman, and Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

 
54715 -   It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Crisman that Ordinance #3057, 

amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
Department of Community Development, be passed upon its first consideration. 
Following comments by Councilmember Ganfield, the Mayor put the question on 
the motion and upon the call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted.  Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, and Dunn.  
Nay: None.  Motion carried. 
 

54716 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that the bills and claims of April 1, 
2024 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: 
None. Motion carried. 

          
54717 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that the meeting be adjourned at 

7:28 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
                                                           __________________________________ 
                                                           Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

7

Item 1.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

  FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: April 4, 2024 

 SUBJECT: FY2025 Budget 

 
Attached are the state budget forms for the FY25 budget. This sets the rate at $11.86. 
This rate decreased from the $11.93 rate that was originally presented to Council.  
Based on the amendments that the Council discussed at the April 1st committee 
meeting, the changes to the budget in the amount of $150,000 were incorporated into 
the budget to arrive at the new proposed rate of $11.86.   
 
The public hearing for Monday night is the second hearing as required by the new state 
requirements. This hearing actually approves the FY25 budget. The budget, as 
presented and taking into account the $11.86 rate and assuming an increase in 
valuation of 20%, will cause a 5.86% increase on residential properties.  
 
Along with the state required forms, is the summary sheet summarizing the budget 
impacts.  Once the budget is adopted by the City Council, the final budget document will 
be updated with the new tax rate information and distributed and published on our 
website.   
 
If you have any questions about the budget or the budget process, please feel free to 
contact me.  
 
 
 

8

Item 2.



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE FY2025 BUDGET 
 FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has considered 

approving and adopting the FY2025 Budget for the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve and adopt said Budget.   

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that said FY2025 Budget is hereby approved and adopted.   

 

ADOPTED this 15th day of April, 2024. 
       
  
       _____________________ 
                                                                                       Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

9

Item 2.



10

Item 2.



11

Item 2.



12

Item 2.



13

Item 2.



14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



20

Item 2.



21

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Principal Engineer, PE, PhD 
 
 DATE: April 8, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project 
  City Project Number: PI-000-3331 
  Public Hearing 
 

This project involves the removal of a portion of the Orchard Hill Park parking lot and the 
entire driveway. A larger parking lot consists in part of both a full depth HMA 
reconstruction and an HMA overlay. Concrete curb and gutter will be added and will 
channel the collected stormwater into the new detention basin on site. This project will 
also prepare the asphalt pad for the eight new pickleball courts. Internal sidewalk 
connections will be established to access the new courts. 
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $489,469.50. The project 
will be funded by General Obligation Bond, Cell Tower Lease, General Fund Savings, 
and Private Contributions.  
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the Orchard Hill Pickleball 
Court Expansion Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Stephanie Sheets, Director of Community Development 

22

Item 3.



ITEM # ITEM CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

1 2010-108-D-1 ON-SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. 535 15.00$            8,025.00$           
2 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE C.Y. 264 20.00$            5,280.00$           
3 2010-108-F-0 EXCAVATION, (SITE GRADING), CLASS 10 C.Y. 1400 10.00$            14,000.00$         
4 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, (BORROW), CLASS 10 C.Y. 540 20.00$            10,800.00$         
5 2010-108-G-0 SUBGRADE PREPARATION S.Y. 2800 2.00$              5,600.00$           
6 2010-108-I-0 SUBBASE, MODIFIED, 6 IN. S.Y. 5262 12.00$            63,144.00$         
7 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15 IN. HDPE (Dual Wall) L.F. 36 65.00$            2,340.00$           
8 4040-108-A-0 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED, 6 IN. HDPE (Dual Wall) L.F. 14 12.00$            168.00$              
9 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-512 (BASIN OUTLET) EACH 1 10,000.00$     10,000.00$         
10 6010-108-G-0 CONNECTION TO EXISTING MANHOLE OR INTAKE EACH 1 1,500.00$       1,500.00$           
11 7010-XXX-X-X PCC FLUME & FROST FOOTING L.S. 1 4,520.00$       4,520.00$           
12 7010-108-E-0 CURB (STANDARD 6"), PCC 6 IN., 2.0 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 831 30.00$            24,930.00$         
13 7010-108-E-0 CURB (SLOPED 4"), PCC 6 IN., 2.0 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 624 30.00$            18,720.00$         
14 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), SURF., 1/2", PG58-28S TONS 570 135.00$          76,950.00$         
15 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), INTERMEDIATE, 3/4", PG58-28S TONS 330 135.00$          44,550.00$         
16 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), BASE., 3/4", PG58-28S TONS 660 135.00$          89,100.00$         
17 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), INTERMEDIATE, 3/4", PG58-28S (LEVELING COURSE) TONS 80 135.00$          10,800.00$         
18 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 32 30.00$            960.00$              
19 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. 35 10.00$            350.00$              
20 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 47 65.00$            3,055.00$           
21 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 10 70.00$            700.00$              
22 7030-108-H-0 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 35 60.00$            2,100.00$           
23 8020-108-B-0 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE STA. 26.5 85.00$            2,252.50$           
24 8020-108-G-0 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS EACH 13 100.00$          1,300.00$           
25 8030-000-0-0 STREET SIGNS (SIGNS, POST, & RECIEVER) EACH 5 350.00$          1,750.00$           
26 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1 5,000.00$       5,000.00$           
27 9010-108-B-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. 19100 2.00$              38,200.00$         
28 9040-108-A-2 STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP), MANAGEMENT L.S. 1 5,000.00$       5,000.00$           
29 9040-108-D-1A WATTLES, 9IN. STRAW L.F. 800 5.00$              4,000.00$           
30 9040-108-D-2A WATTLES, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL L.F. 800 5.00$              4,000.00$           
31 9040-108-E-0 TEMPORARY ROLLED EROSION CONTROL (RECP) (TYPE 2.C) S.Y. 700 4.00$              2,800.00$           
32 9040-108-J -0 RIP-RAP, REVETMENT STONE (CLASS E) TONS 20 50.00$            1,000.00$           
33 9040-108-T-1 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, INSTALLATION EACH 3 200.00$          600.00$              
34 9040-108-T-2 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EACH 3 75.00$            225.00$              
35 11020-108-A-0 MOBILIZATION L.S. 1 25,000.00$     25,000.00$         
36 11050-108-A-0 CONCRETE WASHOUT L.S. 1 750.00$          750.00$              

489,469.50$       

ORCHARD HILL PICKLEBALL COURT EXPANSION PROJECT

CITY PROJECT NO. PI-000-3331

FINAL ESTIMATE OF COST & QUANTITIES

TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

23

Item 3.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: March 18, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Adoption of new Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) and Text Amendments to 
Sections 26-2, 26-30, 26-31, 26-32, 26-33, 26-119, 26-176, 26-177, and 26.178 as 
part of the adoption of the new FIRMs (TA24-001) 

 

 
On November 8, 2023, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) issued a letter of 
final determination setting an effective date of May 8, 2024, for the revised Flood Insurance 
Rate Maps (FIRMs) for the City of Cedar Falls. In order to continue participation in the National 
Flood Insurance Program, the City is required to update the Zoning Code to meet FEMA 
requirements before the adoption date of the maps.  
 
Background 
In 2010, the Iowa Department of Natural Resources began obtaining new LIDAR (3D laser 
scanning) data. The Black Hawk County stream reaches were delineated on top of the LIDAR 
images as a basis for updates to the Flood Insurance Rate Maps for Black Hawk County. Flood 
Insurance Maps updates are usually performed as better data becomes available; these new 
maps will replace maps which were last updated in 2011. In March and May 2019, the Iowa 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and FEMA hosted an open house to present 
preliminary Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) to the residents of Cedar Falls and Black Hawk 
County. In February 2020, the City filed an appeal for the University Branch of Dry Run Creek 
based on a study completed by Snyder and Associates and new data collected for the bridge 
constructed as part of the Greenhill Road extension. The appeal was granted, and it resulted in 
the removal of 18 properties from the floodplain in the area between Main and Campus Streets.  
 
In August 2020 property owners east of Main Street between Orchard Drive and Greenhill Road 
were notified by DNR that there was a mapping error to the floodplain which affected 69 
properties in the area. To correct this error, new preliminary maps were released in January 
2021, for a comment period that extended the review and required a new appeal process 
through September 2021. A letter of final determination (LFD) was issued with the intent for the 
new maps to go into effect in October 2022; however, there were additional mapping errors 
identified on three (3) FIRM Panels and an excluded flood profile, data used to create the maps, 
for a tributary to Dry Run Creek. These errors reset the process for another review and appeal 
pushing out the adoption date to December 1, 2023. 
 

24

Item 4.



 
 

Due to an error by FEMA in the publication date of the LFD, the final adoption date of the maps 
was pushed out to May 8, 2024. 
 
Analysis 
In a comparison of our current FIRMs with the revised FIRMs, 195 new parcels were added to 
the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA); however, 64 parcels currently shown in the SFHA have 
been removed, thereby showing a net increase of 131 parcels in the SFHA.  These numbers do 
not include any State or City owned properties.   
 
Attached is a document with the FEMA required changes to each section of the Zoning Code 
showing the additional language in red and the deleted language struck-out and in red. Below is 
a summary of the changes to each section of the code.  
 
In Sec. 26-2 General Floodplain Definitions, there are several changes to definitions which 
provide additional language and clarifications to the current definitions; Flood, Flood Insurance 
Study, Floodway, Lowest Floor, Substantial Damage, and Substantial Improvement.   
 
Other changes involve the addition of definitions commonly included in the National Flood 
Insurance Program; Enclosed Area Below Lowest Floor, Factory Built Home and Home Park, 
Five Hundred Year Flood, Historic Structure, Maximum Damage Potential, Recreational Vehicle, 
Variance, and Violation. A few of these terms are defined in other sections of the zoning code, 
such as Historic Structure, Recreation Vehicle, Variance, and Violation; however, at FEMA 
direction, these specific definitions as they apply to floodplain regulations should also be 
included with the floodplain definitions, as they may be different in this context.   
 
Changes to Sec. 26-30, Floodplain Development Permit, include adding a requirement when 
requesting a floodplain development permit to include the location and dimensions of all 
structures and additions. This is currently required by staff as part of the application process, so 
the addition will codify our current practice. Other minor changes include replacing the term 
“building(s)” with “structure(s)” and replacing the term “uses” with “development.” 
 
Changes to Sec. 26-31, Variance and Special Exception Permits and 26-32, Development 
Requiring Approval by the State Department of Natural Resources are the replacement of 
the terms “building(s)” and “uses” with the terms “structure(s)” and “development,” as noted 
above. 
 
Sec. 26-33, Duties of Zoning Administrator Relative to Development in Flood Hazard Areas, 
added three additional duties to the zoning administrator, or designee; these include maintaining 
the accuracy of the community’s FIRMs, performing site inspections, and forwarding all variance 
requests to the Board of Adjustment. These are duties currently being performed by the 
designated staff.  

Changes to Sec. 26-35, Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), are updates to reflect the new FIRM 
panels that are to be adopted. 
 
The changes to Sec. 26-119, Establishment of Floodplain Districts, are the addition of the 
definition for the Floodway Overlay District, the Floodway Fringe Overlay District, and the General 
Floodplain District. 
 

25

Item 4.



 
 

The changes to Sec. 26-176, F-W Floodway Overlay District, are minor and include the 
replacement of the terms “building(s)” and “uses” with “structure(s)” and “development” and 
adding recreational vehicles to a list of items that if permitted shall meet the applicable 
performance standards of the floodway fringe district. 
 
Changes to Sec. 26-177, F-F Floodway Fringe Overlay District, include the replacement of the 
building and use terminology. In addition, the list of required flood protection for equipment and 
utilities, subsection 7(c) has been divided into two sections, one paragraph for equipment and 
another paragraph for utilities. Subsection 8(d) added additional requirements for filling under an 
elevated structure and clarifies the requirement regarding the minimum elevation and to extend 
placement of any fill. There is additional language added to subsection (11) regarding 
requirements for subdivisions, adding public utilities to the standards of the ordinance and 
requiring proposals for subdivisions greater than five (5) acres or fifty (50) lots to include flood 
elevation data for those areas located within the Floodway Fringe Overlay District. The City 
currently requires this information during the subdivision process, but it is not spelled out in the 
Floodway Fringe Overlay District. There is also correction for a code subsection reference, the 
correct reference is subsection (e)(7)(a)(1) through (4). And finally, a new subsection (19) has 
been added providing detail for the requirements of flood protection for new, substantially 
improved, or substantially damaged buildings.  
 
The only change to Sec. 26-178, General Floodplain Overlay District, is the replacement of the 
term “use(s)” with the term “development.”   
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  
At their meeting on February 28, 2024, on a vote of 7-0, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended approval of the zoning code text amendment. 
Minutes from the meeting are attached below. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
& 
Discussion 
2/28/2024 

Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Planner Weintraut provided 
background information. He explained that most of the amendments are just 
clarifications or additional definitions that need to be updated to current FEMA 
standards. There are approximately eight sections that will need to be updated 
prior to the effective date of the new floodplain maps on May 8, 2024. Weintraut 
discussed the background of the map updating process that started in 2019. He 
noted that the DNR reviewed the City’s ordinance and recommended changes 
to bring the City’s ordinance into compliance with FEMA requirements. He went 
on to discuss each proposed text amendment.  
 
Sorensen inquired whether the Commission needed to review and approve the 
new floodplain maps.  Howard clarified that FEMA adopts the maps and then 
requires local jurisdictions to acknowledge the new maps and make any 
necessary amendments to floodplain ordinances prior to the effective date of the 
new maps, which is May 8, 2024. Leeper made a motion to approve the item. 
Henderson seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 7 
ayes (Alberhasky, Hartley, Henderson, Johnson, Leeper, Sorensen and 
Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 
 

 

26

Item 4.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 1 of 7 

Sec. 26-2. Definitions. 

(2) General floodplain definitions.  

Base flood means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year (See 100-
year (one percent) flood). This is the regulatory standard also referred to as the "100-year flood." 100 year flood. 
The base flood is the national standard used by the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and all federal 
agencies for the purpose of requiring the purchase of flood insurance and regulating new development. Base flood 
elevations (BFEs) are typically shown on the flood insurance rate maps (FIRMs).  

Basement means any enclosed area of a building which has its floor or lowest level below ground level (subgrade) 
on all sides. Any basement situated with less than one-half of its height below grade shall be counted as a story for 
the purpose of height regulations. A basement having more than one-half of its height below grade is not included 
in computing the number of stories for the purpose of height measurement. Also see “Lowest floor.” Lowest Floor. 

Development means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but not limited to 
constructing or installing buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, clearing, grading, paving, 
excavation, drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials. Development does not include minor projects 
or routine maintenance of existing buildings and facilities as defined in this section. It also does not include 
gardening, plowing, or similar practices that do not involve filling or grading.  

Enclosed area below lowest floor means the floor of the lowest enclosed area in a building when all the following 
criteria are met:  

(1) The enclosed area is designed to flood to equalize hydrostatic pressure during flood events with walls or 
openings that satisfy the provisions of Sec. 26-177(e)(7)(a).1 through 4, and  

(2) The enclosed area is unfinished (not carpeted, drywalled, etc.) and used solely for low damage potential uses 
such as building access, parking or storage, and  

(3) Machinery and service facilities (e.g., hot water heater, HVAC, electrical service, and all components thereof) 
contained in the enclosed area are located at least one (1) foot above the base flood elevation, and  

(4) The enclosed area is not a basement as defined in this section.   

Factory-built home means any structure designed for residential use which is wholly or in substantial part made, 
fabricated, formed or assembled in manufacturing facilities for installation or assembly and installation, on a 
building site. For the purpose of this section, a factory-built home includes a mobile home, manufactured home, 
and modular homes; and also includes recreational vehicles which are placed on a site for greater than 180 
consecutive days and not fully licensed for and ready for highway use.  

Existing construction is any structure for which the "start of construction" start of construction commenced before 
the effective date of the first floodplain management regulations adopted by the community. May also be referred 
to as "existing structure." existing structure.  

Factory-built home park or subdivision means a parcel or contiguous parcels of land divided into two or more 
factory-built home lots for sale or lease. 

Five hundred year flood (500-year flood) means a flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths percent chance 
of being equaled or exceeded in any given year or which the magnitude, on average, will be equaled or exceeded 
at least once every five hundred years. 

Flood means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land areas 
resulting from the overflow of streams or rivers or from the unusual and rapid runoff of surface waters from any 
source.a temporary rise in the channel flow or stage, resulting from the overflow of streams or rivers or from the 
unusual and rapid runoff of surface waters from any source, that results in water overflowing and inundating 
normally dry lands adjacent to the channel.  

Flood elevation means the elevation flood-waters would reach at a particular site during the occurrence of a 
specific flood. For instance, the "100-year flood" 100-year flood or the "100-year (one percent) flood" 100-year 

27

Item 4.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 2 of 7 

(one percent) is that flood, the magnitude of which has a one percent (one percent) chance of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year. The "500-year flood" 500-year flood or the "500-year (0.2 percent) flood" 500-year 
(0.2 percent) flood is that flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths of one percent (0.2 percent) chance of 
being equaled or exceeded in any given year.  

Flood insurance study means a report published by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) issued 
along with a community’s Flood Insurance Rate Maps. The study contains such background data as the base flood 
discharge and water surface elevations that were used to prepare the FIRMs.n examination, evaluation and 
determination of flood hazards and, if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations.  

Floodproofing means a combination of structural and non-structural provisions, changes or adjustments 
incorporated in the design or construction and alteration of individual buildings, structures or properties, and 
including utilities, water treatment and sanitary facilities, which will reduce or eliminate flood damages.  

Floodway means the channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplain adjoining the channel which 
are reasonably required to carry and discharge floodwaters or flood flows associated with the regulatory flood, so 
that confinement of flood flows to the floodway area will not result in substantially higher flood levels and flow 
velocities cumulatively increase the water surface elevation of the base flood by more than one foot. 

Historic structure means any structure that is:  

(1) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places, maintained by the Department of Interior, or 
preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing in 
the National Register; 

(2) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the historical 
significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined by the Secretary to qualify as 
a registered historic district; 

(3) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic preservation programs which 
have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior; or, 

(4) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in The City of Cedar Falls that have been certified by 
either i) an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior or ii) directly by the 
Secretary of the Interior in states without approved programs.  

Lowest floor means the floor of the lowest enclosed area in a building, including a basement, except when all the 
following criteria are met: the criteria listed in the definition of “enclosed area below lowest floor” enclosed area 
below lowest floor are met. 

Maximum damage potential development means hospitals and like institutions; buildings or building complexes 
containing documents, data, or instruments of great public value; buildings or building complexes containing 
materials dangerous to the public or fuel storage facilities; power installations needed in emergency or other 
buildings or building complexes similar in nature or use.  

New construction (new buildings, new mobile factory-built homes or parks) means those structures or 
development for which the start of construction commenced on or after February 1, 1985.  

Recreational vehicle means a vehicle which is: 

(1) Built on a single chassis; 
(2) Four hundred (400) square feet or less in size when measured at the largest horizontal projection; 
(3) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and 

(4) Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as a temporary living quarters for recreational, 
camping, travel, or seasonal use.  

Regulatory flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths (0.2 percent) of one percent chance of 
being equaled or exceeded in any given year. Regulatory flood is also referred to in this chapter as the "500-year 
flood” 500-year flood and the "500-year (0.2 percent) flood." 500-year (0.2 percent) flood. 

28

Item 4.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 3 of 7 

Routine maintenance of existing buildings and facilities means repairs necessary to keep a structure in a safe and 
habitable condition. Such routine maintenance and repair activities include:  

(1) Normal maintenance of structures such as re-roofing, replacing roofing tiles and replacing siding; 
(2) Exterior and interior painting, papering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, counter tops and similar finish work; 
(3) Basement sealing; 
(4) Repairing or replacing damaged or broken window panes; 
(5) Repairing plumbing systems, electrical systems, heating or air conditioning systems and repairing wells or 

septic systems. 
(6) Other routine maintenance and repair activities that do not trigger a building permit.  

 

Special flood hazard area (SFHA) is the land within a community the City of Cedar Falls subject to the regulatory 
base flood. This land is identified on the community's the City of Cedar Falls’ flood insurance rate maps as Zone A, 
A1—30, AE, AH, AO, AR, A99, X Shaded and X Unshaded.  

Structure means anything constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the ground, including but not 
limited to buildings, factories, sheds, cabins, factory-built housing, storage tanks, grain storage facilities and other 
similar uses. For zoning purposes anything, excluding fences, judged to be permanently affixed to the site and 
measuring at least 30 inches in height, as measured from natural grade, shall be considered a structure.  

Substantial damage means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of restoring the 
structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the fair market value of the 
structure before the damage occurred. Volunteer labor and donated materials shall be included in the cost of 
restoration. 

Substantial improvement means any improvement to a structure which satisfies either of the following criteria:  

(1) Any repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition or improvement of a structure, the cost of which 
equals or exceeds fifty (50) percent of the fair market value, before the start of construction of the 
improvement. This term included structures which have incurred repetitive loss or substantial damage, 
regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does not, however, inc lude either:   

a. before the start of construction of the improvement, or. This term includes structures which have 
incurred repetitive loss or substantial damage, regardless of the actual repair work performed. The 
term does not, however, include either: 

b. if the structure has been substantially damaged and is being restored, before the damage occurred.  

a.  Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local health, 
sanitary or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code enforcement 
officer and which are the minimum necessary to ensure safe living conditions; or 

b. Any alteration to an historic structure, provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's 
continued designation as a historic structure. 

(2) Any addition which increases the original floor area of a building by 25 percent or more. All additions 
constructed after February 1, 1985, the effective date of the first floodplain management regulations 
adopted by the City of Cedar Falls, shall be added to any proposed addition in determining whether the 
total increase in original floor space would exceed 25 percent. 

a. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local health, 
sanitary or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code enforcement 
officer and which are the minimum necessary to ensure safe living conditions; or 

c. Any alteration to an historic structure, provided that the alteration will not preclude the 
structure's continued designation as a historic structure.  

29

Item 4.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 4 of 7 

The term does not, however, include any improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local 
health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code enforcement official 
and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions. The term also does not include any 
alteration of an historic structure, provided the alteration will not preclude the structure’s designation as an 
historic structure.  

Variance means a grant of relief by the City of Cedar Falls from the terms of the floodplain management 
regulations.  

Violation means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the City of Cedar Falls’ 
floodplain management regulations.  

 

Sec. 26-30. Floodplain development permit. 

(a)  A floodplain development permit issued by the zoning administrator shall be secured prior to initiation of 
any floodplain development. Application for a floodplain development permit shall be made on forms 
supplied by the zoning administrator and shall include the following information:  

(3) Location and dimensions of all structures and additions.  

(6) The elevation, in relation to the North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD), of the lowest floor, 
including basement, of buildings structures or of the level to which a building structure is to be 
floodproofed.  

(7) For buildings structures being improved or rebuilt, the estimated cost of improvements and fair market 
value of the building structure prior to the improvements.  

(c) All uses development or structures in the floodway, floodway fringe and general floodplain districts requiring 
special exception permits shall be allowed only upon application to the zoning administrator with issuance of 
the special exception permit by the board of adjustment. Petitioners shall include information ordinarily 
submitted with applications, as well as any additional information deemed necessary by the board of 
adjustment. Where required, approval of the state department of natural resources shall precede issuance of 
the special exception permit by the board of adjustment.  

Sec. 26-31. Variances and special exception permits. 

(a) The board of adjustment may authorize, upon request, in specific cases, such variances from the terms of 
this chapter as will not be contrary to the public interest, where owing to special conditions a literal 
enforcement of the provisions of this chapter will result in unnecessary hardship. Variances granted must 
meet the following applicable standards:  

(4) In cases where the variance involves a lower level of flood protection for buildings structures than what 
is ordinarily required by this chapter, the applicant shall be notified in writing over the signature of the 
zoning administrator that:  

Sec. 26-32. Development requiring approval by state department of natural resources. 

For those uses development requiring state department of natural resources approval, such approval shall be 
obtained in writing and provided to the board of adjustment prior to issuance of a special exception permit.  

Sec. 26-33. Duties of zoning administrator relative to development in flood hazard areas. 

It shall be the responsibility of the zoning administrator or their his official designee to:  

(10) Maintain the accuracy of Cedar Falls’ Flood Insurance Rate Maps when: 

a. Development placed within the Floodway (Overlay) District results in any of the following: 

30

Item 4.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 5 of 7 

(i) An increase in the Base Flood Elevations, or 

(ii) Alteration to the floodway boundary 

b. Development placed in Zones A, AE, AH, and A1-30 that does not include a designated floodway 
that will cause a rise of more than one foot in the base elevation; or 

c. Development relocates or alters the channel. 

Within 6 months of the completion of the development, the applicant shall submit to FEMA all 
scientific and technical data necessary for a Letter of Map Revision.  

(11) Perform site inspections to ensure compliance with the standards of this section. 

(12) Forward all requests for variances to the Board of Adjustment for consideration and ensure all requests 
include the information ordinarily submitted with applications as well as any additional information 
deemed necessary. 

Sec. 26-35. Flood insurance rate map (FIRM). 

The flood insurance rate map (FIRM) for the county Black Hawk County and incorporated areas, City of Cedar 
Falls and the city, panels 19013C0145F 19013C0145G, 0153F 19013C0153G, 0154F 19013C0154G, 0158F 
19013C0158G, 0161F 19013C0161G, 0162F 19013C0162G, 0163F19013C0163G, 0164F19013C0164G, 0166F 
19013C0166G, 0168F 19013C0168G, 19013C0260G, 0276F 19013C0276G, 0277F 19013C0277G, 0278F 
19013C0278G, 0279F 19013C0279G, 0281F 19013C0281G, 0282F 19013C0282G, and 0283F 19013C0283G, 
effective dated July 18, 2011 May 8, 2024, which were prepared as part of the flood insurance study for the county 
Black Hawk County, are hereby adopted by reference and declared to be the official floodplain zoning map. The 
flood profiles and all explanatory material contained within the flood insurance study are also declared to be a part 
of this chapter.  

Sec. 26-119. Establishment of floodplain districts. 

(c) Classes of districts. In order to classify, regulate and restrict the location of trades and industries and the 
location of buildings designed for specific uses, to regulate and limit the height and bulk of buildings erected 
or altered, to regulate and limit the intensity of the use of lot areas and to regulate and determine the area 
of yards, courts and other open spaces within and surrounding such buildings within established floodprone 
areas, the city is hereby divided into three classes of floodplain districts. The use, height and area regulations 
are uniform in each class of district, and the districts shall be known as the F-W floodway district, the F-F 
floodway fringe district and the F-P general floodplain district. divided into the following:  

(1)  Floodway (Overlay) District (F-W) - those areas identified as Floodway on the Official Floodplain Zoning 
Map;  

(2) Floodway Fringe (Overlay) District (F-F) - those areas identified as Zone AE and the adjoining shaded 
Zone X on the Official Floodplain Zoning Map but excluding those areas identified as Floodway; and; 

(3)  General Floodplain (Overlay) District (F-P) - those areas identified as Zone A and the adjoining shaded 
Zone X on the Official Floodplain Zoning Map.  

Sec. 26-176. F-W Floodway Overlay District. 

(c) Performance standards. All floodway district uses development allowed as a principal permitted or 
conditional use shall meet the following standards:  

(1) No use development shall be permitted in the floodway district that would result in any increase in the 
100-year (one percent) flood level. Consideration of the effects of any development on flood levels 
shall be based upon the assumption that an equal degree of development would be allowed for 
similarly situated lands.  

31

Item 4.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 6 of 7 

(2) All uses development within the floodway district shall:  

a. Be consistent with the need to limit flood damage.  

b. Use construction methods and practices that will limit flood damage.  

c. Use construction materials and utility equipment that are resistant to flood damage.  

(3) No use development shall affect the capacity or conveyance of the channel or floodway or any tributary 
to the main stream, drainage ditch or any other drainage facility or system.  

(4) Structures, buildings, recreational vehicles, and sanitary and utility systems, if permitted, shall meet the 
applicable performance standards of the floodway fringe district and shall be constructed or aligned to 
present the minimum possible resistance to flood flows.  

(8) Buildings Structures, if permitted, shall have a low flood damage potential and shall not be utilized for 
human habitation.  

Sec. 26-177. F-F Floodway Fringe Overlay District. 

(e) Performance standards. All uses development must be consistent with the need to limit flood damage to the 
maximum extent practicable, and shall meet the following applicable performance standards:  

(4) All structures development shall be:  

a. Designed and A adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the 
structure.  

(7) c. Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is being established or 
reconstructed must be constructed with electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning 
equipment and other service facilities that are designed and located so as to prevent water from 
entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding. All such facilities 
including heating, cooling and ventilating systems or ducts shall be located or installed at least one 
foot above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level.  

c. Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is being established or 
reconstructed shall be constructed with electric meter, electrical service panel box, hot water 
heater, heating, air conditioning, ventilation equipment (including ductwork), and other similar 
machinery and equipment elevated (or in the case of non-residential structures, optionally 
floodproofed) to a minimum of one foot above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level. 

d. Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is being established or 
reconstructed shall be constructed with plumbing, gas lines, water/gas meters and other similar 
service utilities either elevated (or in the case of non-residential structures, optionally 
floodproofed) to a minimum of one foot above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level or designed 
to be watertight and withstand inundation to such a level. 

(8) Filling in the floodway fringe.  

d. The only portion of the property that may be filled is the area underneath the elevated structure, 
together with driveway access to the structure. In no case shall the maximum lot area of the 
property filled exceed 33.33 percent of the total area of the lot. , and shall extend at least 18 feet 
from the outer foundation of the structure. Construction shall be upon compacted fill, which 
shall, at all points, be no lower than 1.0 ft. above the 500-year (0.2%) flood elevation and extend 
at such elevation at least 18 feet beyond the limits of any structure erected thereon. 

(11) Subdivisions, including factory-built home parks and subdivisions, shall meet the following requirements. 
Subdivisions shall be consistent with the need to limit flood damage to the maximum practicable extent, 
and shall have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood damage. Development 
associated with subdivision proposals, including the installation of public utilities, shall meet the 

32

Item 4.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 7 of 7 

applicable performance standards of this section. Subdivision proposals intended for residential 
development shall provide all lots with a means of vehicular access that is above the 500-year (0.2 
percent) flood level. Proposals for subdivisions greater than five (5) acres or fifty (50) lots (whichever is 
less) shall include 500-year (0.2%) flood elevation data for those areas located within the Floodway 
Fringe (Overlay) District. 

(15) No use development shall affect the capacity or conveyance of the channel or any tributary to the main 
stream, drainage ditch or other drainage facility or system.  

(16) Detached garages, storage sheds, appurtenant structure and other similar detached accessory structures 
that are incidental to a residential use shall be allowed in the floodway fringe district with no minimum 
elevation requirement provided that all the following criteria are satisfied. Exemption from the elevation 
requirement for such structures may result in increased premium rates for flood insurance coverage of 
the structure and its contents:  

d. The structures will comply with minimum required permanent openings as specified in 
subsections (e)(7)(d)(4)a.1. through 4.  

(19) Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged maximum damage potential development, 
that is to be established or reconstructed as authorized in this chapter shall have the lowest floor 
(including basement) elevated a minimum of one (1) foot above the elevation of the 500-year flood, or 
together with attendant utility and sanitary systems, be floodproofed to such a level. When 
floodproofing is utilized, a professional engineer registered in the State of Iowa shall certify that the 
floodproofing methods used are adequate to withstand the flood depths, pressures, velocities, impact 
and uplift forces and other factors associated with the 500-year (0.2%) annual chance flood; and that the 
structure, below the 500-year (0.2%) annual chance flood elevation is watertight with walls substantially 
impermeable to the passage of water. A record of the certification indicating the specific elevation (in 
relation to North American Vertical Datum 1988) to which any structures are floodproofed shall be 
maintained by the zoning administrator. Where 500-year (0.2%) chance flood elevation data has not 
been provided in the Flood Insurance Study, the Iowa Department of Natural Resources shall be 
contacted to compute such data. The applicant shall be responsible for submitting an application to the 
Department of Natural Resources with sufficient technical information to make such determinations. 

Sec. 26-178. F-P General Floodplain Overlay District. 

(b) Conditional uses. Any development use which involves placement of structures, factory-built homes, fill or 
other obstructions, the storage of materials or equipment, excavation or alteration of a watercourse may be 
allowed only upon issuance of a special exception permit by the board of adjustment. All such uses 
development shall be reviewed by the state department of natural resources to determine:  

 

 

 
 

33

Item 4.



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Thomas Weintraut, Planner III, City of Cedar Falls. 220 Clay Street,  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (319) 268-5184 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3051 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA,  

ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, SUBSECTION 26-2(2), GENERAL 

FLOODPLAIN DEFINITIONS; ARTICLE II, ADMINISTRATION 

AND ENFORCEMENT, DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, SEC. 26-30, 

FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, SEC. 26-31, VARIANCES 

AND SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMITS; SEC. 26-32, DEVELOPMENT 

REQUIRING APPROVAL BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF 

NATURAL RESOURCES, SEC. 26-33, DUTIES OF ZONING 

ADMINISTRATOR RELATIVE TO DEVELOPMENT IN FLOOD 

HAZARD AREAS, SEC. 26-35, FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP 

(FIRM); ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, 

DIVISION 1, GENERALLY,  SEC. 26-119, ESTABLISHMENT OF 

FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS; ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND 

DISTRICT REGULATIONS, DIVISION 2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, 

SEC. 26-176, FLOODWAY OVERLAY DISTRICT, SEC. 26-177, 

FLOODWAY FRINGE OVERLAY DISTRICT, SEC 26-178, GENERAL 

FLOODPLAIN OVERLAY DISTRICT.   

 
WHEREAS, on January 14, 1985, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls adopted 

Ordinance No. 1764, amending the Zoning Code to adopt floodplain regulations and Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps in order to participate in the National Flood Insurance Program: and, 

 
WHEREAS, on July 11, 2011, the City Council of Cedar Falls adopted Ordinance No. 

2750, amending the Zoning Code to adopt new Flood Insurance Rate Maps as part of the City’s 
continued participation in the National Flood Insurance Program; and,   

 
WHEREAS, on November 8, 2023, the City received a letter from FEMA advising a new 

set of Flood Insurance Rate Maps would become effective for Black Hawk County on May 8, 
2023; and, 

 
WHEREAS, to continue participation in the National Flood Insurance Program 

amendments to the Zoning Code are necessary to acknowledge and adopted the new Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps and update certain provision within the City’s floodplain regulations as 
required by FEMA; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Planning and Commission has reviewed the proposed amendments to 

Chapter 26, Zoning, under Case # TA24-001 and recommends approval; and 

34

Item 4.



 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls City Council has determined that said amendments to 

Chapter 26, Zoning are in the best interests of the community; and now, therefore:  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 
THAT: 

 

Section 1: Subsection 26-2(2), General Floodplain Definitions, is hereby repealed in its 
entirety and the following Subsection 26-2(2), is enacted in lieu thereof: 

 

(2) General floodplain definitions. 

Appurtenant structure is a structure which is on the same parcel of the property as the principal 
structure to be insured and the use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure.  

Base flood means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any 
given year (See 100-year (one percent) flood). This is the regulatory standard also referred to 
as the 100 year flood. The base flood is the national standard used by the National Flood 
Insurance Program (NFIP) and all federal agencies for the purpose of requiring the purchase of 
flood insurance and regulating new development. Base flood elevations (BFEs) are typically 
shown on the flood insurance rate maps (FIRMs).  

Base flood elevation is the elevation floodwaters would reach at a particular site during the 
occurrence of a base flood event.  

Basement means any enclosed area of a building which has its floor or lowest level below 
ground level (subgrade) on all sides. Any basement situated with less than one-half of its height 
below grade shall be counted as a story for the purpose of height regulations. A basement 
having more than one-half of its height below grade is not included in computing the number of 
stories for the purpose of height measurement. Also see Lowest Floor. 

Channel means a natural or artificial watercourse having definite banks and beds with visible 
evidence of flow or occurrence of water.  

Development means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, 
but not limited to constructing or installing buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, 
clearing, grading, paving, excavation, drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials. 
Development does not include minor projects or routine maintenance of existing buildings and 
facilities. It also does not include gardening, plowing, and similar practices that do not involve 
filling or grading.  

Elevating means raising a structure or property by fill or other means to or above the minimum 
flood protection level.  

Enclosed area below lowest floor means the floor of the lowest enclosed area in a building when 
all the following criteria are met:  

(1) The enclosed area is designed to flood to equalize hydrostatic pressure during flood events 
with walls or openings that satisfy the provisions of Sec. 26-177(e)(7)(a).1 through 4; and  

(2) The enclosed area is unfinished (not carpeted, drywalled, etc.) and used solely for low 
damage potential uses such as building access, parking, or storage; and  

(3) Machinery and service facilities (e.g., hot water heater, HVAC, electrical service, and all 
components thereof) contained in the enclosed area are located at least one (1) foot above 
the base flood elevation; and  

35

Item 4.



 
 

(4) The enclosed area is not a basement as defined in this section.   

Encroachment limits means a set of lines which delineate the boundaries of the floodway 
established in the floodplains as the designated width of channel and overbank areas through 
which the regulatory flood must pass.  

Existing construction is any structure for which the start of construction commenced before the 
effective date of the first floodplain management regulations adopted by the community. May 
also be referred to as existing structure.  

Factory-built home means any structure designed for residential use which is wholly or in 
substantial part made, fabricated, formed or assembled in manufacturing facilities for installation 
or assembly and installation, on a building site. For the purpose of this section, a factory-built 
home includes a mobile home, manufactured home, and modular homes; and also includes 
recreational vehicles which are placed on a site for greater than 180 consecutive days and not 
fully licensed for and ready for highway use.  

Factory-built home park or subdivision means a parcel or contiguous parcels of land divided into 
two or more factory-built home lots for sale or lease. 

Factory-built home park or subdivision, existing is a factory-built home park or subdivision for 
which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built homes are to 
be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and 
either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before the effective date of 
the first floodplain management regulations adopted by the community.  

Factory-built home park or subdivision, expansion of existing is the preparation of additional 
sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built homes are to 
be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and 
either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads).  

Factory-built home park or subdivision, new is a factory-built home park or subdivision for which 
the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built homes are to be 
affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either 
final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after the effective date of 
the first floodplain management regulations adopted by the community.  

Five hundred year flood (500-year flood) means a flood, the magnitude of which has a two-
tenths percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year or which the magnitude, 
on average, will be equaled or exceeded at least once every five hundred years. 

Flood means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally 
dry land areas resulting from the overflow of streams or rivers or from the unusual and rapid 
runoff of surface waters from any source.  

Flood elevation means the elevation floodwaters would reach at a particular site during the 
occurrence of a specific flood. For instance, the 100-year flood or the 100-year (one percent) is 
that flood, the magnitude of which has a one percent (one percent) chance of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year. The 500-year flood or the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood is that flood, 
the magnitude of which has a two-tenths of one percent (0.2 percent) chance of being equaled 
or exceeded in any given year.  

Flood insurance rate map (FIRM) means the official map prepared as part of, but published 
separately from, the flood insurance study, which delineates both the flood hazard areas and 
the risk premium zones applicable to the community.  

Flood insurance study means a report published by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) issued along with a community’s Flood Insurance Rate Maps. The study 

36

Item 4.



 
 

contains such background data as the base flood discharge and water surface elevations that 
were used to prepare the FIRMs.  

Floodplain means any land susceptible to being inundated by water as a result of a flood.  

Floodplain buildable area means that portion of the lot remaining after the minimum yard area 
requirements (i.e., setbacks) of this chapter have been met, and shall not include that portion of 
the property within the 500-year floodplain.  

Floodplain management is an overall program of corrective and preventive measures for 
reducing flood damages and promoting the wise use of floodplain, including but not limited to 
emergency preparedness plans, flood control works, floodproofing and floodplain management 
regulations.  

Flood profile means a graph or a longitudinal profile showing the relationship of the water 
surface elevation of a flood event to a location along a stream or river.  

Floodproofing means a combination of structural and non-structural provisions, changes or 
adjustments incorporated in the design or construction and alteration of individual buildings, 
structures, or properties, including utilities, water treatment and sanitary facilities, which will 
reduce or eliminate flood damages.  

Floodway means the channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplain adjoining 
the channel which are reasonably required to carry and discharge floodwaters or flood flows so 
that confinement of flood flows to the floodway area will not cumulatively increase the water 
surface elevation of the base flood by more than one foot. 

Floodway fringe means the land adjacent to a body of water between the floodway and the 
outer (landward) limits of the special flood hazard area, as defined by the regulatory flood as 
delineated on the official floodplain zoning map.  

Habitable space for flood protection purposes means any floor or level, including a basement, 
which is suitable for human habitation. It excludes a garage, a detached accessory structure, or 
an area for housing electrical, plumbing, heating, ventilating and other utility systems 
underneath a structure elevated to comply with flood protection requirements.  

Highest adjacent grade is the highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to 
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure.  

Historic structure means any structure that is: 

(1) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places, maintained by the Department 
of Interior, or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the 
requirements for individual listing of the National Register; 

(2) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the 
historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined by 
the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district; 

(3) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic preservation 
programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior; or, 

(4) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic 
preservation programs that have been certified by either i) an approved state program as 
determined by the Secretary of the Interior or ii) directly by the Secretary of the Interior in 
states without approved programs. 

Lowest floor means the floor of the lowest enclosed area in a building, including a basement, 
except when the criteria listed in the definition of enclosed area below lowest floor are met. 

37

Item 4.



 
 

Maximum damage potential development means hospitals and like institutions; buildings or 
building complexes containing documents, data, or instruments of great public value; buildings 
or building complexes containing materials dangerous to the public or fuel storage facilities; 
power installations needed in emergency or other buildings or building complexes similar in 
nature or use.  

New construction (new buildings, new factory-built homes or parks) means those structures or 
development for which the start of construction commenced on or after February 1, 1985.  

Obstruction means any dam, wall, wharf, embankment, levee, dike, pile, abutment, projection, 
excavation, channel rectification, bridge, conduit, culvert, building, wire, fence, rock, gravel, 
refuse, fill, structure or matter in, along, across or projecting into any watercourse or floodplain 
area which may impede, retard or change the direction of the flow of water, either in itself or by 
catching or collecting debris carried by such water, or that is placed where the flow of water 
might carry material or structure downstream to the damage of other properties.  

Official floodplain zoning map means the maps on file with the city that indicate those portions of 
land known as the floodway, floodway fringe and general floodplain, which are subject to the 
regulations of this chapter.  

One hundred year flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a one percent chance of 
being equaled or exceeded in any given year or which, on average, will be equaled or exceeded 
at least once every 100 years.  

Program means the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).  

Public damages shall consist of but not necessarily be limited to the following:  

Public sewer system means a municipally owned, operated, and maintained sanitary sewer 
system.  

Reach is a hydraulic engineering term used to describe longitudinal segments of a stream or 
river. A reach will generally include the segment of the flood hazard area where flood heights 
are primarily controlled by manmade or natural obstructions or constrictions. In an urban area, 
an example of a reach would be the segment of a stream or river between two consecutive 
bridge crossings.  

Regulatory flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths (0.2 percent) of one 
percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. Regulatory flood is also 
referred to in this chapter as the 500-year flood and the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood." 

Repetitive loss includes flood-related damage sustained by a structure on two separate 
occasions during a 10-year period for which the cost of repairs at the time of each such flood 
event, on the average, equals or exceeds 25 percent of the market value of the structure before 
the damage occurred.  

Recreational vehicle means a vehicle that is: 

(1) Built on a single chassis; 

(2) Four hundred (400) square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection; 

(3) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and 

(4) Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as a temporary living quarters 
for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use. 

Regulatory flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths (0.2 percent) of one 
percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. Regulatory flood is also 
referred to in this chapter as the 500-year flood and the  500-year (0.2 percent) flood. 

38

Item 4.



 
 

Routine maintenance of existing buildings and facilities means repairs necessary to keep a 
structure in a safe and habitable condition. Such routine maintenance and repair activities 
include:  

(1) Normal maintenance of structures such as re-roofing, replacing roofing tiles and replacing 
siding; 

(2) Exterior and interior painting, papering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, counter tops and similar 
finish work; 

(3) Basement sealing; 

(4) Repairing or replacing damaged or broken windowpanes; 

(5) Repairing plumbing systems, electrical systems, heating or air conditioning systems, and 
repairing wells or septic systems. 

(6) Other routine maintenance and repair activities that do not trigger a building permit.  

Special exception permit means an authorization by the city board of adjustment to allow 
building improvements or other development when such project conforms with specified rules, 
regulations and/or performance standards required for said improvements or development in 
special areas of the city as identified by the zoning ordinance.  

Special flood hazard area (SFHA) is the land within the City of Cedar Falls subject to the base 
flood. This land is identified on the City of Cedar Falls’ flood insurance rate maps as Zone A, 
A1—30, AE, AH, AO, AR, A99.  

Start of construction includes substantial improvement and new construction, means the date 
the development permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement, was within 180 days of 
the permit date.  

The actual start means either the first placement or permanent construction of a structure on a 
site, such as pouring of a slab or footings, the installation of pile, the construction of columns, or 
any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a factory-built home on a 
foundation.  

Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; 
nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for 
a basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it 
include the installation on the property of accessory buildings such as garages or sheds not 
occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure.  

For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any 
wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of the building, whether or not that alteration affects 
the external dimensions of the building.  

Structure means anything constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the ground, 
including but not limited to buildings, factories, sheds, cabins, factory-built housing, storage 
tanks, grain storage facilities, and other similar uses. For zoning purposes anything, excluding 
fences, judged to be permanently affixed to the site and measuring at least 30 inches in height, 
as measured from natural grade, shall be considered a structure.  

Substantial damage means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of 
restoring the structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the 
fair market value of the structure before the damage occurred. Volunteer labor and donated 
materials shall be included in the estimated cost of repair. 

39

Item 4.



 
 

Substantial improvement means any improvement to a structure which satisfies either of the 
following criteria:  

(1) Any repair, reconstruction,  or improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or 
exceeds fifty (50) percent of the fair market value either;   

a. before the start of construction of the improvement, or 

b. if the structure has been substantially damaged and is being restored, before the 
damage occurred.  

(2) Any addition which increases the original floor area of a building by 25 percent or more. 
All additions constructed after February 1, 1985, the effective date of the first floodplain 
management regulations adopted by the City of Cedar Falls, shall be added to any 
proposed addition in determining whether the total increase in original floor space would 
exceed 25 percent. 

The term does not, however, include any improvement of a structure to correct existing 
violations of state or local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been 
identified by the local code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure 
safe living conditions. The term also does not include any alteration of an historic structure, 
provided the alteration will not preclude the structure’s designation as an historic structure.  

Temporary storage means a volume of water which may be stored upstream from a dam or in 
an impoundment above the level of the principal outlet works, usually expressed in acre-feet.  

Variance means a grant of relief by a community from the terms of the floodplain management 
regulations.  

Violation means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the 
community’s floodplain management regulations.  

Section 2:  Sec. 26-30, Floodplain Development Permit, is hereby repealed in its entirety 
and the following Sec. 26-30, is enacted in lieu thereof:  

Sec. 26-30. Floodplain development permit. 

(a) A floodplain development permit issued by the zoning administrator shall be secured prior 
to initiation of any floodplain development. Application for a floodplain development permit 
shall be made on forms supplied by the zoning administrator and shall include the following 
information:  

(1) A description of the work to be covered by the permit for which application is to be 
made.  

(2) A description of the land on which the proposed work is to be done, i.e., lot, block, 
tract, street address or similar description that will readily identify and locate the work 
to be done. 

(3) Location and dimensions of all structures and additions  

(4) An indication of the use or occupancy for which the proposed work is intended.  

(5) The elevations of the 100-year (one percent) and 500-year (0.2 percent) flood.  

(6) The elevation, in relation to the North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD), of the 
lowest floor, including basement, of structures or of the level to which a structure is to 
be floodproofed.  

40

Item 4.



 
 

(7) For structures being improved or rebuilt, the estimated cost of improvements and fair 
market value of the structure prior to the improvements.  

(8) Such other information as the administrator deems reasonably necessary for the 
purpose of this chapter.  

(b) Floodplain development permits issued on the basis of approved plans and applications 
authorize only the use, arrangement and construction set forth in such approved plans and 
applications and no other use, arrangement or construction. Any use, arrangement, or 
construction at variance with that authorized shall be deemed a violation of this chapter 
and shall be punishable as provided in this chapter. The applicant shall be required to 
submit certification by a professional engineer or land surveyor, as appropriate, registered 
in the state, that the finished fill, building floor elevations, floodproofing or other flood 
protection measures were accomplished in compliance with the provisions of this chapter 
prior to the use or occupancy of any structure.  

(c) All development or structures in the floodway, floodway fringe and general floodplain 
districts requiring special exception permits shall be allowed only upon application to the 
zoning administrator with issuance of the special exception permit by the board of 
adjustment. Petitioners shall include information ordinarily submitted with applications, as 
well as any additional information deemed necessary by the board of adjustment. Where 
required, approval of the state department of natural resources shall precede issuance of 
the special exception permit by the board of adjustment.  

(d) The zoning administrator shall, within a reasonable time, make a determination as to 
whether the proposed floodplain development meets the applicable provisions and 
standards of this chapter, and shall approve or disapprove the application. In case of 
disapproval, the applicant shall be informed, in writing, of a specific reason therefor. The 
zoning administrator shall not issue permits for special exception permits or variances 
except as directed by the board of adjustment.  

 
Section 3:  Sec. 26-31, Variances and Special Exception Permits, is hereby repealed in its 
entirety and the following Sec. 26-31 is enacted in lieu thereof: 

Sec. 26-31. Variances and Special Exception Permits. 

(a) The board of adjustment may authorize, upon request, in specific cases, such variances 
from the terms of this chapter as will not be contrary to the public interest, where owing to 
special conditions a literal enforcement of the provisions of this chapter will result in 
unnecessary hardship. Variances granted must meet the following applicable standards:  

(1) No variance shall be granted for any development within the floodway district which 
would result in any increase in floods during the occurrence of the 500-year flood. 
Consideration of the effects of any development on flood levels shall be based upon 
the assumption that an equal degree of development would be allowed for similarly 
situated lands.  

(2) Variances shall only be granted upon:  

a. A showing of good and sufficient cause;  

b. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional 
hardship to the applicant; and  

41

Item 4.



 
 

c. A determination that the granting of the variance will not result in increased flood 
heights, additional threats to public safety or extraordinary public expense, create 
nuisances, or cause fraud on or victimization of the public.  

(3) Variances shall only be granted upon a determination that the variance is the 
minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.  

(4) In cases where the variance involves a lower level of flood protection for structures 
than what is ordinarily required by this chapter, the applicant shall be notified in writing 
over the signature of the zoning administrator that:  

a. The issuance of a variance will result in increased premium rates for flood 
insurance up to amounts as high as $25.00 for $100.00 of insurance coverage; 
and  

b. Such construction increases risk to life and property.  

(5) All variances granted shall have the concurrence or approval of the state department 
of natural resources.  

(b) In passing upon applications for special exception permits or requests for variances, the 
board shall consider all relevant factors specified in other sections of this chapter and:  

(1) The danger to life and property due to increased flood heights or velocities caused by 
encroachments.  

(2) The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands or downstream to the injury 
of others.  

(3) The proposed water supply and sanitation systems and the ability of these systems to 
prevent disease, contamination, and unsanitary conditions.  

(4) The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the 
effect of such damage on the individual owner.  

(5) The importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the community.  

(6) The requirements of the facility for a floodplain location.  

(7) The availability of alternative locations not subject to flooding for the proposed use.  

(8) The compatibility of the proposed use with existing development and development 
anticipated in the foreseeable future.  

(9) The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan and floodplain 
management program for the area.  

(10) The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency 
vehicles.  

(11) The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and sediment transport of the 
floodwater expected at the site.  

(12) Such other factors which are relevant to the purpose of this chapter.  

(c) Upon consideration of the factors listed in subsection (b) of this section, the board may 
attach such conditions to the granting of special exception permits or variances as it deems 
necessary to further the purpose of this chapter. Such conditions may include, but not 
necessarily be limited to:  

(1) Modification of waste disposal and water supply facilities.  

(2) Limitation on periods of use and operation.  

42

Item 4.



 
 

(3) Imposition of operational controls, sureties, and deed restrictions.  

(4) Requirements for construction of channel modifications, dikes, levees, and other 
protective measures, provided such are approved by the state department of natural 
resources and are deemed the only practical alternative for achieving the purposes of 
this chapter.  

(5) Floodproofing measures shall be designed consistent with the flood protection 
elevation for the particular area, flood velocities, durations, rate of rise, hydrostatic and 
hydrodynamic forces, and other factors associated with the regulatory flood. The 
board of adjustment shall require that the applicant submit a plan or document 
certified by a registered professional engineer that the floodproofing measures are 
consistent with the regulatory flood protection elevation and associated flood factors 
for the particular area. Such floodproofing measures may include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, the following:  

a. Anchorage to resist flotation and lateral movement.  

b. Installation of watertight doors, bulkheads and shutters, or similar methods of 
construction.  

c. Reinforcement of walls to resist water pressures.  

d. Use of paints, membranes, or mortars to reduce seepage of water through walls.  

e. Addition of mass or weight structures to resist flotation.  

f. Installation of pumps to lower water levels in structures.  

g. Construction of water supply and waste treatment systems so as to prevent the 
entrance of floodwaters.  

(6) Pumping facilities or comparable practices for subsurface drainage systems for 
structures to relieve external foundation wall and basement flood pressures.  

(7) Construction to resist rupture or collapse caused by water pressure or floating debris.  

(8) Installation of valves or controls on sanitary and storm drains which will permit the 
drains to be closed to prevent backup of sewage and stormwaters into the buildings or 
structures.  

(9) Location of all electrical equipment, circuits and installed electrical appliances in a 
manner which will ensure that they are not subject to flooding.  

 
Section 4:  Sec. 26-32, Development Requiring Approval by State Department of Natural 
Resources, is hereby repealed in its entirety and the following Sec. 26-32, is enacted in lieu 
thereof:  

Sec. 26-32. Development requiring approval by state department of natural resources. 

For development requiring state department of natural resources approval, such approval 
shall be obtained in writing and provided to the board of adjustment prior to issuance of a 
special exception permit.  

 
Section 5:  Sec. 26-33, Duties of Zoning Administrator Relative to Development in Flood 
Hazard Areas, is hereby amended to add subparagraphs (10), (11), and (12), as follows: 

 

(10) Maintain the accuracy of the community’s Flood Insurance Rate Maps when; 

43

Item 4.



 
 

a. Development placed within the Floodway (Overlay) District results in any of the 
following: 

(i) An increase in the Base Flood Elevations, or 

(ii) Alteration to the floodway boundary 

b. Development placed in Zones A, AE, AH, and A1-30 that does not include a 
designated floodway that will cause a rise of more than one foot in the base 
elevation; or 

c. Development relocates or alters the channel. 

Within 6 months of the completion of the development, the applicant shall submit to 
FEMA all scientific and technical data necessary for a Letter of Map Revision. 

(11) Perform site inspections to ensure compliance with the standards of this Ordinance. 

(12) Forward all requests for Variances to the Board of Adjustment for consideration. 
Ensure all requests include the information ordinarily submitted with applications as 
well as any additional information deemed necessary to the Board of Adjustment 

 
Section 6:  Sec. 26-35, Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), is hereby repealed in its entirety 
and the following Sec. 26-35, is enacted in lieu thereof:  

 

Sec. 26-35. Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 

The flood insurance rate map (FIRM) for Black Hawk County and incorporated areas, City 
of Cedar Falls, panels 19013C0145G, 19013C0153G, 19013C0154G, 19013C0158G, 
19013C0161G, 19013C0162G, 19013C0163G, 19013C0164G, 19013C0166G, 19013C0168G, 
19013C0260G, 19013C0276G, 19013C0277G, 19013C0278G, 19013C0279G, 19013C0281G, 
19013C0282G, and 19013C0283G, effective dated May 8, 2024, which were prepared as part 
of the flood insurance study for Black Hawk County, are hereby adopted by reference and 
declared to be the official floodplain zoning map. The flood profiles and all explanatory material 
contained within the flood insurance study are also declared to be a part of this chapter.  

 
Section 7:  Subsection 26-119(c), Classes of Districts, within Sec 26-119, Establishment of 
Floodplain Districts, is hereby repealed in its entirety and the following Subsection 26-
119(c), is enacted in lieu thereof: 

 

(c) Classes of districts. In order to classify, regulate and restrict the location of trades and 
industries and the location of buildings designed for specific uses, to regulate and limit the 
height and bulk of buildings erected or altered, to regulate and limit the intensity of the use 
of lot areas and to regulate and determine the area of yards, courts and other open spaces 
within and surrounding such buildings within established floodprone areas, the city is 
hereby divided into three classes of floodplain districts. The use, height and area 
regulations are uniform in each class of district, and the districts shall be divided into the 
following:  

(1)  Floodway (Overlay) District (F-W) - those areas identified as Floodway on the Official 
Floodplain Zoning Map;  

(2) Floodway Fringe (Overlay) District (F-F) - those areas identified as Zone AE and the 
adjoining shaded Zone X on the Official Floodplain Zoning Map but excluding those 
areas identified as Floodway; and; 

44

Item 4.



 
 

(3)  General Floodplain (Overlay) District (F-P) - those areas identified as Zone A and the 
adjoining shaded Zone X on the Official Floodplain Zoning Map.  

 
Section 8:  Sec. 26-176, F-W Floodway Overlay District, is hereby repealed in its entirety 
and the following Sec. 26-176 is enacted in lieu thereof: 

 

Sec. 26-176. F-W Floodway Overlay District. 

(a) Principal permitted uses. The following uses shall be permitted within the F-W floodway 
district to the extent they are not prohibited by other provisions of this chapter or of this 
Code, or the underlying zoning district, and provided they do not require placement of 
structures, factory-built homes, fill or other obstruction, the storage of materials or other 
equipment, excavation or alteration of a watercourse:  

(1) Agricultural uses such as general farming, pasture, grazing, outdoor plant nurseries, 
horticulture, viticulture, truck farming, forestry, sod farming and wild crop harvesting.  

(2) Industrial-commercial uses such as loading areas, parking areas and airport landing 
strips.  

(3) Private and public recreational uses such as golf courses, tennis courts, driving 
ranges, archery ranges, picnic grounds, boat launching ramps, swimming areas, 
parks, wildlife and nature preserves, game farms, fish hatcheries, shooting preserves, 
target ranges, trap and skeet ranges, hunting and fishing areas and hiking and horse 
riding trails.  

(4) Residential uses such as lawns, gardens, parking areas and play areas.  

(5) Other open space uses similar in nature to the uses listed in this subsection.  

(b) Conditional uses. The following uses, which involve structures (temporary or permanent), 
fill, storage of materials or other equipment, may be permitted only upon issuance of a 
special exception permit by the board of adjustment, and then only to the extent they are 
not prohibited by other provisions of this section or of this Code or the underlying zoning 
district. Such uses must also meet the applicable provisions of the floodway district 
performance standards:  

(1) Uses or structures accessory to open space uses.  

(2) Circuses, carnivals and similar transient amusement enterprises.  

(3) Drive-in theaters, new and used car lots, roadside stands, signs and billboards.  

(4) Extraction of sand, gravel and other material.  

(5) Marinas, boat rentals, docks, piers and wharves.  

(6) Utility transmission lines and underground pipelines.  

(7) Other uses similar in nature to the principal permitted and conditional uses described 
in this section which are consistent with the floodway district performance standards 
and the general spirit and purpose of this division.  

(c) Performance standards. All floodway district development shall meet the following 
standards:  

(1) No development shall be permitted in the floodway district that would result in any 
increase in the 100-year (one percent) flood level. Consideration of the effects of any 

45

Item 4.



 
 

development on flood levels shall be based upon the assumption that an equal degree 
of development would be allowed for similarly situated lands.  

(2) All development within the floodway district shall:  

a. Be consistent with the need to limit flood damage.  
b. Use construction methods and practices that will limit flood damage.  
c. Use construction materials and utility equipment that are resistant to flood 

damage.  

(3) No development shall affect the capacity or conveyance of the channel or floodway or 
any tributary to the main stream, drainage ditch or any other drainage facility or 
system.  

(4) Structures, buildings, recreational vehicles, and sanitary and utility systems, if 
permitted, shall meet the applicable performance standards of the floodway fringe 
district, and shall be constructed or aligned to present the minimum possible 
resistance to flood flows.  

(5) From and after January 1, 2010, there shall be no construction of any new building or 
structure (temporary or permanent) of any type whatsoever, anywhere within the 
floodway overlay district in the city, including, but not limited to, new detached 
garages, storage buildings, or other accessory structures.  

(6) From and after January 1, 2010, there shall be no restoration or reconstruction of any 
previously existing nonconforming building or structure located in the floodway overlay 
district that suffers damage to the extent of 50 percent or more of its fair market value 
at the time of damage of any origin, including, but not limited to, fire, flood, tornado, 
storm, explosion, war, riot or act of God, unless permitted upon issuance of a variance 
and a special exception permit by the board of adjustment, in accordance with the 
provisions of sections 26-30 and 26-31.  

(7) Any restoration or reconstruction of any building or structure located in the floodway 
overlay district that suffers damage to the extent of less than 50 percent of its fair 
market value at the time of damage of any origin, including, but not limited to, fire, 
flood, tornado, storm, explosion, war, riot or act of God, may be restored or 
reconstructed without issuance of a variance or a special exception permit by the 
board of adjustment, and then only as follows:  

a. May commence only upon issuance of a valid building permit issued by the city;  
b. Must not allow any fill material to be used or placed on the lot in connection with 

the elevation and reconstruction of such building or structure;  
c. Must comply in all other respects with all applicable city building codes in effect at 

the time of reconstruction;  
d. Such restoration, rebuilding or reconstruction shall not allow any building addition 

or expansion without obtaining a variance or special exception permit from the 
board of adjustment; and  

e. Any addition or expansion to an existing building or structure located in the 
floodway shall not be allowed, unless permitted upon issuance of a variance and 
special exception permit by the board of adjustment, in accordance with sections 
26-30 and 26-31.  

(8) Structures, if permitted, shall have a low flood damage potential, and shall not be 
utilized for human habitation.  

(9) Storage of materials or equipment that is buoyant, flammable, explosive or injurious to 
human, animal or plant life is prohibited. Storage of other material may be allowed if 

46

Item 4.



 
 

readily removable from the floodway district within the time available after flood 
warning.  

(10) Stream, watercourse, drainage channel or other water channel embankment 
stabilization, filling, alterations or relocations, including removal of vegetation, must be 
designed to maintain the flood-carrying capacity within the altered area, and shall not 
be allowed or undertaken without all required permits from and approvals by the state 
department of natural resources, and shall not proceed without approval of the city 
planner and oversight by the city engineer.  

(11) Any fill allowed in the floodway must be shown to have some beneficial purpose and 
shall be limited to the minimum amount necessary.  

(12) Pipeline river or stream crossings shall be buried in the streambed and banks or 
otherwise sufficiently protected to prevent rupture due to channel degradation and 
meandering or due to the action of flood flows.  

(13) Recreational vehicles placed on sites within the floodway district shall either:  

a. Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days.  
b. Be fully licensed and ready for highway use.  

A recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, 
is attached to the site only by disconnect type utilities and security devices, and has 
no permanent attached additions.  

 
Section 9:  Subsection 26-177 (e), Performance Standards, of Section 26-177, F-F 
Floodway Fringe Overlay District, is hereby repealed in its entirety and the following 
Subsection 26-177(e) is enacted in lieu thereof: 

 

(e) Performance standards. All development must be consistent with the need to limit flood 
damage to the maximum extent practicable, and shall meet the following applicable 
performance standards:  

1) All new development on lots of record in existence prior to January 1, 2010, must 
comply with all required standard flood protection measures, and must meet the 
following requirements:  

a. May commence only upon issuance of a valid building permit issued by the city;  

b. Any open areas underneath the lowest floor shall be floodable in order to allow 
the unimpeded free flow of floodwaters, in conformity with the requirements of 
subsections (e)(7)a.1 through 4 of this section, inclusive; and  

c. Must comply in all other respects with all applicable city building codes in effect at 
the time of reconstruction.  

(2) Any existing building or structure located in the floodway fringe that suffers damage to 
the extent of less than 50 percent of its fair market value from any origin including, but 
not limited to, fire, flood, tornado, storm, explosion, war, or act of God, may be 
reconstructed at its existing elevation, without issuance of a variance or special 
exception permit, if the reconstructed structure meets the following requirements:  

a. May commence only upon issuance of a valid building permit issued by the city; 
and  

b. Must comply in all other respects with all applicable city building codes in effect at 
the time of reconstruction.  

47

Item 4.



 
 

(3) Any existing building or structure that is substantially damaged, may be reconstructed 
if the reconstructed structure meets all required standard flood protection measures, 
including, but not limited to, elevating the structure to a level such that the lowest floor 
is established one foot above the 500-year flood level, and is constructed either on 
elevated foundations, piers or similar elevated techniques that are in compliance with 
then applicable city building code requirements, or using fill which meets the 
requirements of this section, and which meets the following requirements:  

a. May commence only upon issuance of a valid building permit issued by the city;  

b. Any enclosed building areas underneath the lowest floor shall be floodable in 
order to allow the unimpeded free flow of floodwaters, in conformity with the 
requirements of subsections (e)(7)a.1 through 4 of this section; and  

c. Must comply in all other respects with all applicable city building codes in effect at 
the time of reconstruction.  

(4) All development shall be:  

a. Designed and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral 
movement of the structure.  

b. Constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage to the 
maximum practicable extent.  

c. Constructed by methods and practices that limit flood damage to the maximum 
practicable extent.  

(5) Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged residential structure, that is 
to be established or reconstructed as authorized in this chapter, shall have the lowest 
floor, including basement, elevated a minimum of one foot above the 500-year flood 
level. Construction may be upon limited amounts of compacted fill which shall, at all 
points, be no lower than one foot above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level unless 
the necessary amount of fill to satisfy this requirement exceeds allowable fill heights 
specified in subsection (e)(8)b of this section, and shall extend at such elevation at 
least 18 feet beyond the limits of any structure erected thereon. Alternate methods of 
elevating, such as piers or elevated foundations, may be allowed where existing 
topography, street grades or other compelling factors preclude elevating by the use of 
compacted fill material. In all such cases, the methods used for structural elevation 
must be adequate to support the structure as well as withstand the various forces and 
hazards associated with flooding as verified by a structural engineer.  

(6) Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged nonresidential structure, 
that is to be established or reconstructed as authorized in this chapter, shall have the 
lowest floor, including basement, elevated a minimum of one foot above the 500-year 
flood level. Construction may be upon limited amounts of compacted fill which shall, at 
all points, be no lower than one foot above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level or, 
together with attendance utility and sanitary sewerage systems, be floodproofed to 
such a level. When utilizing fill material, the amount placed on the site shall be in 
conformance with subsection (e)(8)b of this section. When floodproofing is utilized, a 
professional engineer registered in the state shall certify that the floodproofing 
methods used are adequate to withstand the flood depths, pressures, velocities, 
impact and uplift forces and other factors associated with the 100-year and 500-year 
flood event, and that the structure established below the 500-year flood elevation 
level, is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water. A 
record of certification, indicating the specific elevation, in relation to the North 

48

Item 4.



 
 

American Vertical Datum of 1988, to which any structures are floodproofed, shall be 
maintained by the zoning/floodplain administrator.  

(7) Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is to be 
established or reconstructed as authorized in this chapter shall meet the following 
requirements:  

a. Fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor, not including basements that are 
subject to flooding shall be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood 
forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters. All said 
areas below the lowest floor shall be designed for low damage potential and shall 
not be habitable space. Such areas shall be used solely for parking of vehicles, 
building access and low damage potential storage. Machinery and service 
facilities (e.g., hot water heater, furnace, electrical service) contained in the 
enclosed area are located at least one foot above the 500-year flood level. 
Designs for meeting this requirement must either be certified by a registered 
professional engineer or meet or exceed the following minimum criteria:  

1. A minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one 
square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall 
be provided.  

2. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above natural 
grade.  

3. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other coverings 
or devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of 
floodwaters.  

4. Openings must be designed and installed so as to allow the natural entry 
and exit of floodwaters without the aid of any manual, mechanical or 
electrical systems either for operating the openings or assisting in the 
discharge of water from the lower area.  

b. Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is being 
established or reconstructed as authorized in this chapter, must be designed or 
modified and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral 
movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, 
including the effects of buoyancy.  

 c. Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is being 
established or reconstructed shall be constructed with electric meter, electrical 
service panel box, hot water heater, heating, air conditioning, ventilation 
equipment (including ductwork), and other similar machinery and equipment 
elevated (or in the case of non-residential structures, optionally floodproofed) to a 
minimum of one foot above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level. 

d. Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is being 
established or reconstructed shall be constructed with plumbing, gas lines, 
water/gas meters and other similar service utilities either elevated (or in the case 
of non-residential structures, optionally floodproofed) to a minimum of one foot 
above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level or designed to be watertight and 
withstand inundation to such a level. 

(8) Filling in the floodway fringe.  

49

Item 4.



 
 

a. Fill activities may be permitted in the floodway fringe overlay district upon 
approval by the city planner and city engineer. All fill application permits shall be 
valid for a period of six months from date of issuance, may be renewed only upon 
filing of an application for renewal with the city planner, and then may only be 
renewed upon a showing of demonstrated progress towards completion of the fill 
activity. All fill application permits must be accompanied by a detailed plan 
describing the area to be filled, the estimated amount of fill to be used and the 
purpose of the fill project. Elevation and topographic data must also be submitted 
by a professional engineer registered in the state that illustrates changes in the 
topography and estimated impacts upon local flood flows. No fill project shall fill 
in or obstruct any local drainage channels without an alternative drainage plan 
design, and shall limit soil erosion and water runoff onto adjacent properties to 
the maximum practicable extent, and in compliance with the NPDES standards 
contained in chapter 27. Except as provided in subsections (e)(8)f and g of this 
section, adjacent property owners shall be identified and notified of the fill project 
by the applicant with proof of notification provided to the city planner. Any fill 
project must be designed to limit negative impacts upon adjacent property 
owners during flood events to the maximum practicable extent.  

b. The amount of allowable fill must not increase the existing natural grade of the 
property by more than three vertical feet at any point, and shall be placed on no 
more than 33.33 percent of the total three vertical feet lot area.  

c. Where fill is authorized under this chapter, any fill placed on a lot of record must 
be mitigated by removal of an equal volume of fill material from a comparable 
elevation within the 500-year floodplain, in order to provide the hydraulic 
equivalent volume of fill removal as compared to the placement of fill on any 
single property located in the floodplain.  

d. The only portion of the property that may be filled is the area underneath the 
elevated structure, together with driveway access to the structure. In no case 
shall the maximum lot area of the property filled exceed 33.33 percent of the total 
area of the lot. Construction shall be upon compacted fill, which shall, at all 
points, be no lower than 1.0 ft. above the 500-year (0.2%) flood elevation and 
extend at such elevation at least 18 feet beyond the limits of any structure 
erected thereon. 

e. If a new or reconstructed structure is to be elevated utilizing fill material, any 
required building elevation standard exceeding the three-foot fill limitation as 
referenced in subsection (e)(8)b of this section must be achieved through the use 
of elevated foundations, piers or similar structural elevation techniques that are in 
compliance with then-applicable city building code requirements as certified by a 
structural engineer.  

f. Fill is allowed for property maintenance purposes in the floodway fringe area 
upon approval of the city planner. For purposes of this subsection, the term 
"property maintenance purposes" means landscaping, gardening or farming 
activities, erosion control, and filling in of washed-out sections of land. Property 
maintenance purposes shall only include the placement of such quantities of fill 
not to exceed the limitations specified herein and that do not inhibit the free flow 
of water. Said limited amounts of fill for property maintenance purposes need not 
be compensated by an equivalent amount of excavation area as specified in 
subsection (e)(8)c of this section.  

50

Item 4.



 
 

g. Filling on public property is prohibited in the floodway fringe district with the 
exception of property maintenance purposes of public facilities, upon approval of 
the city planner. Limited quantities of asphalt, concrete and yard waste may be 
temporarily stored in the floodway fringe district when said materials are being 
staged for further processing. Raw materials may be stockpiled in the floodway 
fringe district when said materials are mined or excavated from a site in the 
floodway or floodway fringe.  

(9) No floodplain map revisions (letter of map revision-fill or LOMR-f) involving placement 
of fill or involving land alterations in the floodway fringe overlay district, even if 
otherwise approved by FEMA, shall be allowed after January 1, 2010; provided, 
however, that owners of properties in the floodway fringe who have applied for a 
LOMR and which were in the process of being approved as of January 1, 2010, shall 
be exempt from this prohibition.  

(10) Factory-built housing and factory-built structures shall meet the following 
requirements:  

a. Factory-built homes, including those placed in existing factory-built home parks 
or subdivisions, shall be anchored to resist flotation, collapse, or lateral 
movement.  

b. Factory-built housing and factory-built structures, including those placed in 
existing factory-built home parks or subdivisions, shall be elevated on a 
permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the structure is a minimum of 
one foot above the 500-year flood level.  

c. Openings shall be established in the lower area to allow the natural entry and exit 
of floodwaters in compliance with subsections (e)(7)a.1 through 4 of this section.  

(11) Subdivisions, including factory-built home parks and subdivisions, shall meet the 
following requirements. Subdivisions shall be consistent with the need to limit flood 
damage to the maximum practicable extent, and shall have adequate drainage 
provided to reduce exposure to flood damage. Development associated with 
subdivision proposals, including the installation of public utilities, shall meet the 
applicable performance standards of this ordinance. Subdivision proposals intended 
for residential development shall provide all lots with a means of vehicular access that 
is above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level. Proposals for subdivisions greater than 
five (5) acres or fifty (50) lots (whichever is less) shall include 500-year (0.2%) flood 
elevation data for those areas located within the Floodway Fringe (Overlay) District. 

(12) Utility and sanitary systems shall meet the following requirements:  

a. All new and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize 
or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the system as well as the discharge of 
effluent into floodwaters. Wastewater treatment facilities shall be provided with a 
level of flood protection equal to or greater than one foot above the 500-year 
flood elevation.  

b. On site waste disposal systems shall be located or designed to avoid impairment 
to the system or contamination from the system during flooding.  

c. New or replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or 
eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the system. Water supply treatment 
facilities shall be provided with a level of protection equal to or greater than one 
foot above the 500-year flood elevation.  

51

Item 4.



 
 

d. Utilities such as gas and electrical systems shall be located and constructed to 
minimize or eliminate flood damage to the system and the risk associated with 
such flood damaged or impaired systems.  

(13) Storage of materials and equipment that are flammable, explosive or injurious to 
human, animal or plant life is prohibited unless elevated a minimum of one foot above 
the 500-year flood level. Other material and equipment must either be similarly 
elevated or:  

a. Not be subject to major flood damage and be anchored to prevent movement due 
to floodwaters; or  

b. Be readily removable from the area within the time available after flood warning.  

(14) Flood control structural works such as levees and floodwalls, shall provide, at 
minimum, protection from a 100-year (one percent) flood with a minimum of three feet 
of design freeboard and shall provide for adequate interior drainage, or at such higher 
elevation as may be mandated by the state or federal government. In addition, 
structural flood control works shall be approved by the state department of natural 
resources.  

(15) No development shall affect the capacity or conveyance of the channel or any 
tributary to the main stream, drainage ditch or other drainage facility or system.  

(16) Detached garages, storage sheds, appurtenant structure and other similar detached 
accessory structures that are incidental to a residential use shall be allowed in the 
floodway fringe district with no minimum elevation requirement provided that all the 
following criteria are satisfied. Exemption from the elevation requirement for such 
structures may result in increased premium rates for flood insurance coverage of the 
structure and its contents:  

a. The total combined floor areas of all such structures located on the lot does not 
exceed a total of 576 square feet in area. Those portions of structures located 
less than one foot above the (0.2 percent) 500-year flood level must be 
constructed of flood resistant materials.  

b. The structures are not suitable for and shall not be used for human habitation.  

c. The structures will be designed to have low flood damage potential and shall be 
used solely for low damage potential purposes such as vehicle parking and 
limited storage.  

d. The structures will comply with minimum required permanent openings as 
specified in subsections (e)(7) a.1. through 4.  

e. The structures will be constructed and placed on the building site so as to limit 
resistance to the greatest practicable extent to the flow of floodwaters.  

f. Structures shall be firmly anchored to prevent flotation, collapse and lateral 
movement.  

g. The structure's service facilities such as electrical, heating and ventilating 
equipment shall be elevated or floodproofed to at least one foot above the (.2 
percent) 500-year flood level.  

(17) Recreational vehicles, if permitted in the underlying zoning district, are exempt from 
the requirements of this chapter regarding anchoring and elevation of factory built 
homes when the following criteria are satisfied:  

52

Item 4.



 
 

a. Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days.  

b. Be fully licensed and ready for highway use.  

A recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, 
is attached to the site only by disconnect type utilities and security devices, and has 
no permanent attached additions.  

(18) Pipeline river or stream crossings shall be buried in the streambed and banks or 
otherwise sufficiently protected to prevent rupture due to channel degradation or due 
to action of flood flows.  

(19) Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged maximum damage 
potential development, that is to be established or reconstructed as authorized in this 
chapter shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated a minimum of one 
(1) foot above the elevation of the 500-year flood, or together with attendant utility and 
sanitary systems, be floodproofed to such a level. When floodproofing is utilized, a 
professional engineer registered in the State of Iowa shall certify that the floodproofing 
methods used are adequate to withstand the flood depths, pressures, velocities, 
impact and uplift forces and other factors associated with the 500-year (0.2%) annual 
chance flood; and that the structure, below the 500-year (0.2%) annual chance flood 
elevation is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water. A 
record of the certification indicating the specific elevation (in relation to North 
American Vertical Datum 1988) to which any structures are floodproofed shall be 
maintained by the Zoning Administrator. Where 500-year (0.2%) chance flood 
elevation data has not been provided in the Flood Insurance Study, the Iowa 
Department of Natural Resources shall be contacted to compute such data. The 
applicant shall be responsible for submitting an application to the Department of 
Natural Resources with sufficient technical information to make such determinations. 

 

Section 10:  Section 26-178 F-P General Floodplain Overlay District, is hereby repealed in 
its entirety and the following Sec. 26-178 is enacted in lieu thereof: 

 

Sec. 26-178. F-P General Floodplain Overlay District. 

(a) Principal permitted uses. The following uses shall be permitted within the F-P general 
floodplain district to the extent they are not prohibited by any other ordinance or underlying 
zoning district and provided they do not require placement of structures, factory-built 
homes, fill or other obstruction, the storage of materials or equipment, excavation or 
alteration of a watercourse:  

(1) Agricultural uses such as general farming, pasture, grazing, outdoor plant nurseries, 
horticulture, viticulture, truck farming, forestry, sod farming and wild crop harvesting. 

(2) Industrial-commercial uses such as loading areas, parking area and airport landing 
strips. 

(3) Private and public recreation uses such as golf courses, tennis courts, driving ranges, 
archery ranges, picnic grounds, boat launching ramps, swimming areas, parking, 
wildlife and nature preserves, game farms, fish hatcheries, shooting preserves, target 
ranges, trap and skeet ranges, hunting and fishing areas, and hiking and horseback 
riding trails.  

(4) Residential uses such as lawns, gardens, parking areas, and play areas.  

53

Item 4.



 
 

(b) Conditional uses. Any development which involves placement of structures, factory-built 
homes, fill or other obstructions, the storage of materials or equipment, excavation or 
alteration of a watercourse may be allowed only upon issuance of a special exception 
permit by the board of adjustment. All such development shall be reviewed by the state 
department of natural resources to determine:  

 (1) Whether the land involved is either wholly or partly within the floodway or floodway 
fringe; and  

 (2) The 100-year or 500-year flood level.  

 The applicant shall be responsible for providing the State Department of Natural Resources 
with sufficient technical information to make the determination.  

(c) Performance standards. 

(1) All conditional uses or portions thereof to be located in the floodway, as determined by 
the state department of natural resources, shall meet the applicable provisions and 
standards of the floodway district.  

(2) All conditional uses or portions thereof to be located in the floodway fringe, as 
determined by the state department of natural resources, shall meet the applicable 
standards of the floodway fringe district.  

(d) Prohibited uses. No structure located within the designated floodplain district may be 
subdivided or converted for the purpose of establishing a separate dwelling unit either 
wholly or partially below the 500-year flood elevation.  

 
 
INTRODUCED:    March 18, 2024      

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  March 18, 2024      

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  April 1, 2024          

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:        

ADOPTED:             

 
 

____________________________ 
       Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
 

54

Item 4.



   FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

M E M O R A N D U M
Public Records Division

 TO: Honorable Mayor Danny Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 DATE: March 8, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Ordinance Adopting the 2024 Code of Ordinances  

 
Section 380.8 of the Code of Iowa requires that our Code of Ordinances be formally 
adopted at least once every five years. The Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances was last 
adopted in 2019 by Ordinance #2937.  Adoption of the attached ordinance simply 
reconfirms and codifies all of the individual ordinances adopted by the City Council 
during the past five years.  Thus, its adoption is not related to any new changes to or 
recodification of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact me at 268-5115.  Thank 
you.   

55

Item 5.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613       (319) 268-5115 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3052 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 
 Section 1.  Purpose.  The purpose of this adopting ordinance is to enable the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, to comply with the provisions of Section 380.8 of the Code of Iowa.  
 
 Section 2.  Adoption.  The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby adopts 
the 2024 Code of Ordinances for the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 380.8 of the Code of Iowa. 
 
 Section 3.  Content.  The 2024 Code of Ordinances is composed of all City ordinances 
presently in effect, except grade ordinances, bond ordinances, zoning map ordinances, 
ordinances vacating streets and alleys, and ordinances containing legal descriptions of urban 
revitalization areas and urban renewal areas. 
  
 The 2024 Code of Ordinances shall include this adopting ordinance and the city clerk’s 
certification of its adoption and passage. 
 
 If the 2024 Code of Ordinances includes an ordinance that has adopted by reference 
the provisions of any statewide or nationally recognized standard code pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 380.10 of the Code of Iowa, the city clerk shall also keep on file, with the 
official copy of the city code, a copy of such standard code. 
 
 Section 4.  Format.  The 2024 Code of Ordinances shall be compiled in loose-leaf 
format. 
 
 Section 5.  Official Copy.  The city clerk shall be responsible for the compilation, 
organization and maintenance of the official 2024 Code of Ordinances and shall keep the 
official copy on file in the office of the city clerk. 
 
 Section 6.  Public Copies.  Additional copies of the 2024 Code of Ordinances shall be 
kept in the office of the city clerk and shall be available for public inspection and purchase. 
 
 Section 7.  Additional Ordinances.  All ordinances, except as hereinafter provided, 
adopted after the effective date of this ordinance shall be in the form of an amendment to or an 

56

Item 5.



2 
 

addition to the 2024 Code of Ordinances.  This section does not apply to grade ordinances, 
bond ordinances, zoning map ordinances, ordinances vacating streets and alleys, and 
ordinances containing legal descriptions of urban revitalization areas and urban renewal areas. 
 
 Section 8.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective after its passage and 
publication, as required by law. 
 

 

INTRODUCED:     March 18, 2024    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   March 18, 2024    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _  April 1, 2024     

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:  _____       

ADOPTED:      _      

 
 

_________________________ 
Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

57

Item 5.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council  
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: March 3, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Updates to City Code Section 23-300  
  Lawful Speed Limits Established 
  Center Street 
 
The newly designed and constructed streetscape of Center Street between Clair Street 
and Lone Tree Road near North Cedar Elementary has been completed. The 
improvements made through the corridor have been newly placed curbs, biocells, and 
other streetscaping amenities. These improvements have provided additional traffic 
calming within the corridor. Additionally, the multi-way stop at Center Street and Lone 
Tree Road was installed last summer. Considering all these items, adjustments will shift 
to a 25mph zone from Lone Tree Road to Clair Street. 
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 23-300, Lawful 
Speed Limits Established, to match what has been designed and constructed. Please 
see the attached redline changes for City Code Section 23-300, Lawful Speed Limits 
Established.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends approval of setting the speed limits in the 
corridor on the attached redline through the Center Street corridor from Clair Street to 
Lone Tree Road.  
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to ask. 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer  
 

58

Item 6.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: Matthew Tolan, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 268-5161 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3053 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE ENUMERATED SPEED LIMIT ON 
CENTER STREET AS 25 MILES PER HOUR FROM A POINT 200 FEET 
SOUTH OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH CLAIR STREET NORTH TO A POINT 
200 FEET NORTH OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH LONE TREE ROAD AND AS 
35 MILES PER HOUR FROM 300 FEET NORTH OF FIRST STREET NORTH 
TO A POINT 200 FEET SOUTH OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH CLAIR STREET 
AND FROM A POINT 200 FEET NORTH OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH LONE 
TREE ROAD NORTH TO THE NORTH CITY LIMITS, IN SECTION 23-300, 
LAWFUL SPEED LIMITS ESTABLISHED, OF DIVISION 5, SPEED, OF 
ARTICLE III, OPERATION, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR 
VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA, BY 1.  REPEALING SUBSECTION 8(d), AND ENACTING A 
NEW SUBSECTION 8(d) IN LIEU THEREOF; AND REPEALING SUBSECTION 
10(f) AND ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION 10(f) IN LIEU THEREOF; AND 2.  
REPEALING SUBSECTION 12(g) THEREOF. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1. Subsection 8(d) and Subsection 10(f) of Section 23-300, Lawful Speed Limits 

Established, of Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor 
Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in 
their entirety and new Subsections 8(d) and 10(f) are enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 
Sec. 23-300. - Lawful speed limits established. 

Unless otherwise provided by this chapter or other city ordinances and appropriately 
posted, the speed limits established in this section shall be the lawful speed, and any speed in 
excess thereof shall be unlawful. 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 

   (8) Twenty-five miles per hour. 25 miles per hour on any of the following streets as 
indicated: 
 

59

Item 6.



2 

 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 
 

 d. Center Street, from a point 200 feet south of its intersection with Clair Street 
north to a point 200 feet north of its intersection with Lone Tree Road. 

 
[unchanged provisions omitted] 

 
(10) 35 miles per hour.  35 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated: 
 
                                   [unchanged provisions omitted] 
 
      f. Center Street, from a point 300 feet north of First Street north to a point 200 

feet south of its intersection with Clair Street, and from a point 200 feet north 
of its intersection with Lone Tree Road north to the north city limits. 

 
                                  [unchanged provisions omitted] 
 
Section 2.  Subsection 12(d) of Section 23-300, Lawful Speed Limits Established, of 

Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and 
subsequent Subsections are renumbered accordingly, as follows: 

 
(12)  45 miles per hour.  45 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated: 
 
                                   [unchanged provisions omitted] 
 

g. Dunkerton Road, from its intersection with U. S. Highway 218 east to the east 
city limits.  

h. Fitkin Road, from its intersection with Ford Road to Center Street.  

i. Ford Road, from its intersection with Fitkin Road south to Lone Tree Road.  

j. Greenhill Road, from its intersection with Hudson Road to the east city limits.  

k. Hudson Road, from its intersection with the south line of University Avenue south 
to the south city limits.  

l. Iowa Highway 58, from its intersection with Ridgeway Avenue south to the south 
city limits.  

m. Lake Street, from U.S. Highway 218 east to the east city limits.  

n. Leversee Road (West half), from a point one-quarter mile north of Lincoln Street 
to the north city limits.  

o. Lincoln Street, from its intersection with Vermont Street easterly to the city limits.  

p. Lone Tree Road, from its intersection with Center Street to Leversee Road.  

q. Main Street (South), from Viking Road south to the city limits.  

r. Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road west to the western city limits.  

s. Union Road, from the south city limits to West 1st Street.  

60

Item 6.



3 

 

t. Viking Road, from the east line of Prairie Parkway east to its intersection with 
Cedar Heights Drive.  

u. Ridgeway Avenue, from Iowa Highway 58 east to the eastern city limits.  

 
 
INTRODUCED:    March 18, 2024 ____________  
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:  March 18, 2024 ____________  
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:  April 1, 2024___________    
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
ADOPTED:      ____________    
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                           Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

61

Item 6.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-11-14 11:03:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 17) 

 
Page 1 of 4 

Sec. 23-300. Lawful speed limits established. 

Unless otherwise provided by this division or other city ordinances and appropriately posted, the speed 
limits established in this section shall be the lawful speed, and any speed in excess thereof shall be unlawful.  

(1) Parks, cemeteries and alleys. 15 miles per hour in any park, cemetery or public alley.  

(2) Business districts. 20 miles per hour in any business district.  

(3) Industrial districts. 25 miles per hour in any industrial district.  

(4) Residence districts; school districts. 25 miles per hour in any residence or school district.  

(5) Suburban districts. 45 miles per hour in any suburban district.  

(6) Fifteen miles per hour. 15 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

a. Clay Street, from West Third Street north to West Second Street.  

b. Pheasant Drive, for a distance of 210 feet east of the centerline of the jog in Pheasant Drive and 
for a distance of 200 feet west of the centerline of the jog in Pheasant Drive.  

(7) Twenty miles per hour. 20 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

Waterloo Road, from its intersection with 14th Street northwesterly to the intersection of Bluff Street 
and East 13th Street.  

(8) Twenty-five miles per hour. 25 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

a. 27th Street (West), from its intersection with Hudson Road west a distance of 1,800 feet.  

b. Brandilynn Boulevard, from 400 feet east of Wal-Mart Drive west to the west end of the street.  

c. Center Street, from its intersection with First Street to a point 300 feet north of First Street.  

d. Center Street, from a point 200 feet south of its intersection with Green Avenue Clair Street 
north to a point 200 feet north of its intersection with Lantz Avenue Lone Tree Road.  

e. Chancellor Drive, from Viking Road south to Ridgeway Avenue.  

f. Cottage Row Road, from Center Street south to a point 800 feet west of the south end of the 
Snag Creek Bridge.  

g. Technology Parkway, from Hudson Road east to Chancellor Drive.  

h. Wal-Mart Drive, from Brandilynn Boulevard south to Viking Road.  

i. Westminster Drive, from Viking Road north and east to Nordic Drive.  

(9) 30 miles per hour. 30 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from Main Street east to a point 850 feet east of Main Street.  

b. First Street (East) westbound, from a point 520 feet east of Main Street west to Main Street.  

c. First Street (West), from Main Street west to Highland Drive.  

d. Brandilynn Boulevard, from 400 feet east of Wal-Mart Drive east to the east end of the street.  

e. Main Street (South), from University Avenue south to Orchard Drive.  

f. Prairie Parkway, from Brandilynn Boulevard south to Viking Road.  

g. Winterberry Drive, from Brandilynn Boulevard south to Viking Road.  

62

Item 6.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-11-14 11:03:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 17) 

 
Page 2 of 4 

(10) 35 miles per hour. 35 miles per hour on any of the following streets as indicated:  

a. 12th Street (West), from a point 425 feet west of the Carriage Lane intersection with West 12th 
Street to a point 125 feet west of the intersection of Barnett Drive with West 12th Street.  

b. 18th Street (East), from Main Street to Waterloo Road.  

c. 27th Street (West), from a point 1,800 feet west of Hudson Road west to a point 4,000 feet west 
of Hudson Road.  

d. Big Woods Road, from Lake Street north to the north city limits.  

e. Cedar Heights Drive, from its intersection with University Avenue to a point 1,200 feet south of 
University Avenue.  

f. Center Street, from a point 300 feet north of First Street north to a point 200 feet south of its 
intersection with Green Avenue Clair Street, and from a point 200 feet north of its intersection 
with Lantz Avenue  Lone Tree Road north to the north city limits.  

g. Cottage Row Road, from 800 feet west of the south end of the Snag Creek Bridge west to the end 
of said road.  

h. Dunkerton Road, from its intersection with Center Street east to its intersection with U. S. 
Highway 218.  

i. Greenhill Road, from Hudson Road west and north to West 27th Street.  

j. Hudson Road, from its intersection with the south line of University Avenue north to its 
intersection with First Street.  

k. Independence Avenue, from Lincoln Street north to Big Woods Road.  

l. Lake Street, from a point 600 feet east of Central Avenue east to U.S. Highway 218.  

m. Lincoln Street, from its intersection with Jefferson Street east to its intersection with Vermont 
Street.  

n. Lone Tree Road, from its intersection with Ford Road to Center Street.  

o. Main Street, from 13th Street to University Avenue, inclusive.  

p. Main Street (South), from Orchard Drive south to the end of the street.  

q. Production Drive, from Viking Road west and south to Technology Parkway.  

r. Rainbow Drive, from its intersection with Waterloo Road east to the city limits.  

s. Technology Parkway, from Hudson Road west to the west end of the street.  

t. University Avenue, from Hudson Road east to the east city limits.  

u. Viking Road, from its intersection with the west line of Prairie Parkway west to the west city 
limits.  

v. Waterloo Road, from its intersection with East 14th Street southeasterly to its intersection of 
University Avenue.  

w. Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road east to Iowa Highway 58.  

(11) 40 miles per hour. 40 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

Reserved.  

(12) 45 miles per hour. 45 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

63

Item 6.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-11-14 11:03:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 17) 

 
Page 3 of 4 

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from a point 850 feet east of Main Street to a point 1,520 feet east 
of Main Street.  

b. First Street (East) westbound, from a point 1,200 feet east of Main Street west to a point 520 feet 
east of Main Street.  

c. First Street (West), from Highland Drive west to a point 340 feet west of Lake Ridge Drive.  

d. 12th Street (West), from a point 125 feet west of the intersection of Barnett Drive with West 
12th Street to the west city limits.  

e. 27th Street (West), from a point 4,000 feet west of Hudson Road west to the west city limits.  

f. Cedar Heights Drive, from a point 1,200 feet south of University Avenue south to the city limits.  

g. Center Street, from a point 300 feet north of First Street to Cottage Row Road.  

h. Dunkerton Road, from its intersection with U. S. Highway 218 east to the east city limits.  

i. Fitkin Road, from its intersection with Ford Road to Center Street.  

j. Ford Road, from its intersection with Fitkin Road south to Lone Tree Road.  

k. Greenhill Road, from its intersection with Hudson Road to the east city limits.  

l. Hudson Road, from its intersection with the south line of University Avenue south to the south 
city limits.  

m. Iowa Highway 58, from its intersection with Ridgeway Avenue south to the south city limits.  

n. Lake Street, from U.S. Highway 218 east to the east city limits.  

o. Leversee Road (West half), from a point one-quarter mile north of Lincoln Street to the north city 
limits.  

p. Lincoln Street, from its intersection with Vermont Street easterly to the city limits.  

q. Lone Tree Road, from its intersection with Center Street to Leversee Road.  

r. Main Street (South), from Viking Road south to the city limits.  

s. Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road west to the western city limits.  

t. Union Road, from the south city limits to West 1st Street.  

u. Viking Road, from the east line of Prairie Parkway east to its intersection with Cedar Heights 
Drive.  

v. Ridgeway Avenue, from Iowa Highway 58 east to the eastern city limits.  

(13) 50 miles per hour. 50 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (West), from a point 340 feet west of Lake Ridge Drive west to Union Road.  

b. Union Road, from West First Street north to the north city limits.  

(14) 55 miles per hour. 55 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from a point 1,520 feet east of Main Street east to a point 700 feet 
east of the midpoint between the Iowa Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 
58 southbound overpass.  

64

Item 6.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-11-14 11:03:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 17) 

 
Page 4 of 4 

b. First Street (East) westbound, from a point 600 feet west of the midpoint between the Iowa 
Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 58 southbound overpass west to a point 
1,200 feet east of Main Street.  

c. First Street (West), from Union Road west to the west city limits.  

d. Iowa Highway 58, from a point 1,300 feet north of its intersection with Greenhill Road south to 
its intersection with Ridgeway Avenue.  

e. University Avenue, from a point 3,100 feet west of its intersection with Hudson Road to the west 
city limits.  

(15) 60 miles per hour. 60 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (East), from its intersection with the midpoint between the Iowa Highway 58 
northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 58 southbound overpass east a distance of 700 feet.  

b. Iowa Highway 58, from its intersection with First Street south to a point 1,300 feet north of its 
intersection with Greenhill Road.  

c. U.S. Highway 218 southbound, from a point 2,000 feet north of its intersection with Lincoln 
Street south to its intersection with First Street.  

d. U.S. Highway 218 northbound, from its intersection with First Street north to a point 410 feet 
north of its intersection with Lincoln Street.  

(16) 65 miles per hour. 65 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from a point 700 feet east of its intersection with the midpoint 
between the Iowa Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 58 southbound 
overpass east to the east city limits.  

b. First Street (East) westbound, from the east city limits west to a point 600 feet east of its 
intersection with the midpoint between the Iowa Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa 
Highway 58 southbound overpass.  

c. U.S. Highway 218 southbound, from the north city limits south to a point 2,000 feet north of its 
intersection with Lincoln Street.  

d. U.S. Highway 218 northbound, from a point 410 feet north of its intersection with Lincoln Street 
north to the north city limits.  

(Code 2017, § 26-207; Ord. No. 1935, §§ 2, 3, 2-25-1991; Ord. No. 1981, §§ 1—5, 7-13-1992; Ord. No. 1982, § 1, 7-
13-1992; Ord. No. 2002, §§ 1, 2, 1-11-1993; Ord. No. 2005, §§ 1, 2, 2-22-1993; Ord. No. 2116, §§ 2, 3, 9-11-1995; 
Ord. No. 2199, § 1, 8-11-1997; Ord. No. 2238, §§ 1, 2, 6-22-1998; Ord. No. 2244, § 2, 10-12-1998; Ord. No. 2314, §§ 
1, 2, 11-13-2000; Ord. No. 2315, §§ 1—5, 11-13-2000; Ord. No. 2325, §§ 1—3, 2-12-2001; Ord. No. 2358, §§ 1—3, 
11-26-2001; Ord. No. 2402, §§ 1, 2, 11-25-2002; Ord. No. 2403, §§ 1, 2, 11-25-2002; Ord. No. 2440, §§ 1, 2, 7-14-
2003; Ord. No. 2451, §§ 1—3, 9-22-2003; Ord. No. 2543, §§ 1, 2, 8-22-2005; Ord. No. 2589, §§ 1—6, 7-10-2006; 
Ord. No. 2601, §§ 1, 2, 9-25-2006; Ord. No. 2704, §§ 1—3, 2-22-2010; Ord. No. 2732, § 1, 2-28-2011; Ord. No. 
2767, §§ 1—4, 6-11-2012; Ord. No. 2772, §§ 1, 2, 7-23-2012; Ord. No. 2835, §§ 1, 2, 2-2-2015; Ord. No. 2898, §§ 1, 
2, 3-20-2017; Ord. No. 2917, §§ 1, 2, 2-19-2018; Ord. No. 2927, 6-18-2018; Ord. No. 2957, §§ 1—3, 11-4-2019; Ord. 
No. 2991, 8-2-2021) 

 

65

Item 6.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: March 5, 2024 

 SUBJECT: City Code of Ordinances Change Request – Art and Culture 
  
 
 
Attached please find recommended changes to the City Code of Ordinances Chapter 
17, Article VIII. Art and Culture Center and Board.  
 
The document is red-lined so you can easily see proposed updates. Changes were 
made to update center name, update the division name to Tourism - removing the 
Visitors wording, update the department director title, shift the HR function of annual 
evaluations to city staff, and simplify the description of art objects. 
 
These changes have been discussed and approved by the Art & Culture Board and staff 
recommends City Council approval.   
 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

66

Item 7.



ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE 1) AMENDING SECTION 17-133, ART AND CULTURE BOARD 

ESTABLISHED, TO RENAME THE CENTER FOR THE ARTS; AND 2) AMENDING 

SECTION 17-138, ABSENCE OF MEMBERS FROM BOARD MEETINGS, TO 

CLARIFY ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS; AND 3) AMENDING SECTION 17-139, 

DIRECTOR OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS AND PROGRAMS TO SERVE AS EX-

OFFICIO MEMBER OF BOARD, TO CHANGE THE CITY STAFF POSITION 

SERVING AND TO CHANGE THE TITLE OF THE SECTION; AND 4) AMENDING 

SECTION 17-140, POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD, TO CLARIFY CERTAIN 

DUTIES OF THE BOARD, ALL IN ARTICLE III, ART AND CULTURE CENTER AND 

BOARD, OF CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Section 1.  Section 17-133, Art and Culture Center Established, of Article III, Art and Culture 

Center and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-133, Art and Culture Center 

Established, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-133. Art and culture center established. 

There is hereby established a municipal art and culture center, to be known as the James and Meryl Hearst 
Art and Culture Center for the Arts.  

(Code 2017, § 20-156; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

                    Section 2.  Section 17-138, Absence of Board Members from Board Meetings, of Article III, Art 

and Culture Center and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-138, Absence of Board 

Members from Board Meetings, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-138. Absence of members from board meetings. 

Members of the art and culture board leaving their residence in the city or absent from three consecutive 
meetings on the board or five meetings within one year, except in the case of sickness or temporary absence from 
the city, without due explanation of absence, shall surrender their office. The mayor shall then fill the vacant 
position, with city council approval.  

(Code 2017, § 20-161; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

                    Section 3.  Section 17-139, Director of Municipal Operations and Programs to Serve as Ex-

Officio Member of Board, of Article III, Art and Culture Center and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and 

Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety 

and a new Section 17-139, Director of Community Development to Serve as Ex-Officio Member of Board, 

is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

67

Item 7.



Sec. 17-139. Director of community developmentmunicipal operations and programs to serve 

as ex-officio member of board. 

The director of community developmentmunicipal operations and programs shall serve as an ex-officio 
member of the art and culture board, without voting privileges.  

(Code 2017, § 20-162; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

                  Section 4.  Section 17-140, Powers and Duties of Board, of Article III, Art and Culture Center 

and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-140, Powers and Duties of Board, is 

enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-140. Powers and duties of board. 

The city art and culture board shall have and possess the following powers and duties and such other powers 
as may be incidental thereto as necessary, and such other powers as may be expressly conferred upon it by law:  

(1) To adopt rules and regulations governing the board's organization and procedure as may be deemed 
necessary. All bylaws, rules or regulations shall be consistent with state, federal and local statutes.  

(2) To develop and provide an art and culture program for the citizens of the city based on the level of 
financial support provided by the city council and other entities.  

(3) To determine the operations and programming policy for the city art and culture center, which will be 
administered by the department of community development through the visitors and tourism/cultural 
programs division manager.  

(4) To participate, if requested by the director of community development, in the selection process of the 
visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(5) Jointly with the director of municipal operations and programs, to evaluate the performance of the 
visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager on a yearly basis.  

(56) To make recommendations to the city council regarding the disposition of all gifts, allocations, devices 
and bequests that may be made in the city for the purpose of establishing, increasing or improving the 
city art and culture program or the development of the art and culture center. However, when any 
such gift, donation, devise or bequest is conditioned on any act of the city, the city council must first 
determine whether such condition can be met.  

(67) To serve as the city's review agency and coordinator of all outside agency and special group requests 
for city financial support related to the provision of art, theater, music or other cultural services.  

(78) On behalf of the city, to accept gifts or purchase works of art and select or make purchases of pictures, 
portraits, statuary and relics, and other objects of art, in the original and in replicas or copies, books, 
periodicals, papers and journals on the subject of art, and furniture, fixtures, stationery and supplies 
for such art.  

(89) To recommend to the city council expenditures by the community development department on behalf 
of the city and board in conformance with the board's program policies.  

(Code 2017, § 20-163; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2943, § 4, 6-3-2019) 

 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

68

Item 7.



PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

                                                                                              ____________________ 

                                                                                                Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

69

Item 7.



ORDINANCE NO. 3054 

AN ORDINANCE 1) AMENDING SECTION 17-133, ART AND CULTURE BOARD 

ESTABLISHED, TO RENAME THE CENTER FOR THE ARTS; AND 2) AMENDING 

SECTION 17-138, ABSENCE OF MEMBERS FROM BOARD MEETINGS, TO 

CLARIFY ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS; AND 3) AMENDING SECTION 17-139, 

DIRECTOR OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS AND PROGRAMS TO SERVE AS EX-

OFFICIO MEMBER OF BOARD, TO CHANGE THE CITY STAFF POSITION 

SERVING AND TO CHANGE THE TITLE OF THE SECTION; AND 4) AMENDING 

SECTION 17-140, POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD, TO CLARIFY CERTAIN 

DUTIES OF THE BOARD, ALL IN ARTICLE III, ART AND CULTURE CENTER AND 

BOARD, OF CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Section 1.  Section 17-133, Art and Culture Center Established, of Article III, Art and 

Culture Center and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-133, Art 

and Culture Center Established, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-133. Art and culture center established. 

There is hereby established a municipal art and culture center, to be known as the Hearst 
Center for the Arts.  

(Code 2017, § 20-156; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

                    Section 2.  Section 17-138, Absence of Board Members from Board Meetings, of 

Article III, Art and Culture Center and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new 

Section 17-138, Absence of Board Members from Board Meetings, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

Sec. 17-138. Absence of members from board meetings. 

Members of the art and culture board leaving their residence in the city or absent from 
three consecutive meetings on the board or five meetings within one year, except in the case of 
sickness or temporary absence from the city, without due explanation of absence, shall 
surrender their office. The mayor shall then fill the vacant position, with city council approval.  

(Code 2017, § 20-161; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

                    Section 3.  Section 17-139, Director of Municipal Operations and Programs to 

Serve as Ex-Officio Member of Board, of Article III, Art and Culture Center and Board, of 

Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-139, Director of Community 

Development to Serve as Ex-Officio Member of Board, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

70

Item 7.



Sec. 17-139. Director of community development to serve as ex-officio member of board. 

The director of community development shall serve as an ex-officio member of the art and 
culture board, without voting privileges.  

(Code 2017, § 20-162; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

                  Section 4.  Section 17-140, Powers and Duties of Board, of Article III, Art and 

Culture Center and Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-140, 

Powers and Duties of Board, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-140. Powers and duties of board. 

The city art and culture board shall have and possess the following powers and duties and 
such other powers as may be incidental thereto as necessary, and such other powers as may 
be expressly conferred upon it by law:  

(1) To adopt rules and regulations governing the board's organization and procedure as 
may be deemed necessary. All bylaws, rules or regulations shall be consistent with 
state, federal and local statutes.  

(2) To develop and provide an art and culture program for the citizens of the city based on 
the level of financial support provided by the city council and other entities.  

(3) To determine the operations and programming policy for the city art and culture 
center, which will be administered by the department of community development 
through the tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(4) To participate, if requested by the director of community development, in the selection 
process of the tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(5) To make recommendations to the city council regarding the disposition of all gifts, 
allocations, devices and bequests that may be made in the city for the purpose of 
establishing, increasing or improving the city art and culture program or the 
development of the art and culture center. However, when any such gift, donation, 
devise or bequest is conditioned on any act of the city, the city council must first 
determine whether such condition can be met.  

(6) To serve as the city's review agency and coordinator of all outside agency and special 
group requests for city financial support related to the provision of art, theater, music 
or other cultural services.  

(7) On behalf of the city, to accept gifts or purchase works of art.  

(8) To recommend to the city council expenditures by the community development 
department on behalf of the city and board in conformance with the board's program 
policies.  

(Code 2017, § 20-163; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2943, § 4, 6-3-2019) 

 

 

 

71

Item 7.



INTRODUCED:     April 1, 2024     

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   April 1, 2024     

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:         

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI:         

ADOPTED:            

 

                                                                                                     

                                                                                              Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

      
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

72

Item 7.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: March 25, 2024 

 SUBJECT: City Code of Ordinances Change Request – Tourism Board 
  
 
 
Attached please find recommended changes to the City Code of Ordinances Chapter 
17, Article VIII. Visitors And Tourism Board.  
 
The document is red-lined so you can easily see proposed updates. Most of the 
changes were made to update the division name to Tourism, removing the Visitors 
wording. 
 
Another change is reducing the number of board members from nine to seven. This 
board has struggled to meet the quorum requirements and recruit the needed number of 
board members. The final change shifts HR functions of hiring and evaluations to city 
staff. 
 
These changes have been discussed and approved by the Tourism board and staff 
recommends City Council approval.   
 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

73

Item 8.



 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE III, VISITORS AND TOURISM 

BOARD, OF CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA CONSISTING OF 

SECTION 17-299, CREATED; SECTION 17-300, MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD; 

APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS; SECTION 17-301, TERM OF OFFICE OF 

BOARD MEMBERS; SECTION 17-302, COMPENSATION OF MEMBERS OF 

BOARD; SECTION 17-303, ABSENCE OF MEMBERS FROM BOARD 

MEETINGS; SECTION 17-304, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT TO SERVE AS EX-OFFICIO MEMBER OF BOARD; 

SECTION 17-305, POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD; AND SECTION 17-

306, APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS FOR VISITORS AND TOURISM 

SERVICES AND PROGRAMS, BY STRIKING SAID ARTICLE IN ITS 

ENTIRETY AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW ARTICLE III, 

TOURISM BOARD, CONSISTING OF THE SAME SECTIONS WITH THE 

SAME TITLES (EXCEPT TO CONFORM TO THE CHANGE OF NAME) SO 

AS TO CHANGE THE TITLE OF THE VISITORS AND TOURISM BOARD TO 

THE TOURISM BOARD, TO REDUCE THE NUMBER OF MEMBERS FROM 

NINE TO SEVEN; TO CLARIFY BOARD MEETING ATTENDANCE 

REQUIREMENTS; AND TO ELIMINATE BOARD PARTICIPATION IN CITY 

EMPLOYMENT FUNCTIONS. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                Article III, Visitors and Tourism Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new 

Article III, Tourism Board, consisting of Section 17-299, Created, Section 17-300, Membership 

of Board; Appointment of Members, Section 17-301, Term of Office of Board Members, Section 

17-302, Compensation of Members of Board, Section 17-303, Absence of Members From 

Board Meetings, Section 17-304, Director of Community Development to Serve as Ex-Officio 

Member of Board, Section 17-305, Powers and Duties of Board, and Section 17-306, 

Appropriation of Funds for Tourism Services and Programs, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

ARTICLE VIII. - VISITORS AND TOURISM BOARD  

Sec. 17-299. Created. 

There is hereby established in the city a city visitors and tourism board.  

74

Item 8.



(Code 2017, § 20-321; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-300. Membership of board; appointment of members. 

(a) The city visitors and tourism board shall be composed of sevennine members.  

(b) The members shall be qualified by general knowledge or experience in matters related to visitors and 
tourism programs.  

(c) Members shall not hold any elective position in the city.  

(d) The members shall be appointed by the mayor, subject to approval of the city council.  

(e) An effort shall be made to appoint members to the board who represent various segments of the hospitality 
industry, including, festivals, special events, attractions, lodging, dining, the University of Northern Iowa, city 
businesses, and the community at-large while making a good faith effort to maintain gender equity as 
required by state law.  

(f) In so far as reasonably practicable, appointees for membership on the board shall be residents of the city, or, 
if that is not reasonably practicable, shall have a place of employment in the city. Appointees who are 
neither residents of the city nor who have a place of employment in the city may be eligible for appointment 
to the board upon a finding of the unavailability of qualified applicants, as determined by the mayor. Any 
person who is a member of the board on the date of adoption of the ordinance from which this article is 
derived who does not meet the qualifications for membership set forth herein shall continue to be eligible to 
serve as a member of the board until both the expiration of his current term and the member's 
nonreappointment by the mayor to an additional term.  

(Code 2017, § 20-322; Ord. No. 2820, § 1, 6-9-2014; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-301. Term of office of board members. 

The term of office of the members of the city visitors and tourism board shall be three years. Appointments 
to fill vacancies shall be for the unexpired term of any board member.  

(Code 2017, § 20-323; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-302. Compensation of members of board. 

All members of the city visitors and tourism board shall serve without compensation, except for their actual 
expenses, which shall be subject to the approval of the city council.  

(Code 2017, § 20-324; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-303. Absence of members from board meetings. 

Members of the city visitors and tourism board absent from three consecutive or five total meetings of the 
board in a year, except in the case of sickness or temporary absence from the city, without due explanation of 
absence, shall surrender their office. The mayor shall then fill the vacant position, with city council approval.  

(Code 2017, § 20-325; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-304. Director of community development to serve as ex-officio member of board. 

The director of community development shall serve as an ex-officio member of the city visitors and tourism 
board, without voting privileges.  

(Code 2017, § 20-326; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2943, § 4, 6-3-2019) 

75

Item 8.



Sec. 17-305. Powers and duties of board. 

The city visitors and tourism board shall have and possess the following powers and duties and such other 
powers as may be incidental thereto as necessary, and such other powers as may be expressly conferred upon it by 
law:  

(1) To adopt rules and regulations governing the board's organization and procedure as may be deemed 
necessary. All bylaws, rules or regulations shall be consistent with state, federal and local statutes and 
shall be subject to the approval of the city council.  

(2) To develop and provide visitors and tourism programs for visitors to the city based on the level of 
financial support provided by the city council and other entities.  

(3) To enhance the economic development of the city by promoting the city as a visitors destination and as 
a viable setting to hold meetings, conventions, special events and community attractions.  

(4) To determine the operations and programming policy for visitors and tourism events, that will be 
administered by the department of community development through the manager of visitors and 
tourism/cultural programs division.  

(5) To participate, if requested by the director of community development, in the selection process of the 
visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(6) Jointly with the director of municipal operations and programs, to evaluate the performance of the 
manager of visitors and tourism/cultural programs division on a yearly basis. The board may 
recommend to the director that the manager of visitors and tourism/cultural programs division be 
dismissed for cause, incompetency, inattention to duties or failure to provide satisfactory program 
leadership, following a vote of two-thirds of the board members and compliance with the city's 
personnel policy and procedures.  

(57) To serve as the city's review agency and coordinator of all outside agency and special group requests 
for city financial support related to the use of hotel/motel tax proceeds to support visitors and tourism 
services.  

(68) To recommend to the city council the approval of grants, projects or programs when necessary and 
timely as a part of the city's annual budget process.  

(79) To recommend to the city council for its approval guidelines and policies related to grant application 
processes, procedures and authorizations.  

(810) To recommend to the city council expenditures by the community development department on behalf 
of the city and board in conformance with the board's program policies.  

(Code 2017, § 20-327; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2943, § 4, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 17-306. Appropriation of funds for visitors and tourism services and programs. 

The city council may annually appropriate a sum of money from the city's share of state hotel/motel tax 
receipts for the payment of a portion of the expense of operating the visitors and tourism/cultural programs 
division and programs.  

(Code 2017, § 20-328; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014)

76

Item 8.



 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

                                                                                               

                                                                                              ____________________ 

                                                                                                Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

77

Item 8.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 3055 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE III, VISITORS AND TOURISM BOARD, OF 

CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA CONSISTING OF SECTION 17-299, 

CREATED; SECTION 17-300, MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD; APPOINTMENT OF 

MEMBERS; SECTION 17-301, TERM OF OFFICE OF BOARD MEMBERS; 

SECTION 17-302, COMPENSATION OF MEMBERS OF BOARD; SECTION 17-303, 

ABSENCE OF MEMBERS FROM BOARD MEETINGS; SECTION 17-304, 

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT TO SERVE AS EX-OFFICIO 

MEMBER OF BOARD; SECTION 17-305, POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD; AND 

SECTION 17-306, APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS FOR VISITORS AND TOURISM 

SERVICES AND PROGRAMS, BY STRIKING SAID ARTICLE IN ITS ENTIRETY 

AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW ARTICLE III, TOURISM BOARD, 

CONSISTING OF THE SAME SECTIONS WITH THE SAME TITLES (EXCEPT TO 

CONFORM TO THE CHANGE OF NAME) SO AS TO CHANGE THE TITLE OF THE 

VISITORS AND TOURISM BOARD TO THE TOURISM BOARD, TO REDUCE THE 

NUMBER OF MEMBERS FROM NINE TO SEVEN; TO CLARIFY BOARD MEETING 

ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS; AND TO ELIMINATE BOARD PARTICIPATION 

IN CITY EMPLOYMENT FUNCTIONS. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                Article III, Visitors and Tourism Board, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new 

Article III, Tourism Board, consisting of Section 17-299, Created, Section 17-300, Membership 

of Board; Appointment of Members, Section 17-301, Term of Office of Board Members, Section 

17-302, Compensation of Members of Board, Section 17-303, Absence of Members From 

Board Meetings, Section 17-304, Director of Community Development to Serve as Ex-Officio 

Member of Board, Section 17-305, Powers and Duties of Board, and Section 17-306, 

Appropriation of Funds for Tourism Services and Programs, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

• ARTICLE VIII. - TOURISM BOARD  

Sec. 17-299. Created. 

There is hereby established in the city a city tourism board.  

(Code 2017, § 20-321; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-300. Membership of board; appointment of members. 

(a) The city tourism board shall be composed of seven members.  

78

Item 8.



(b) The members shall be qualified by general knowledge or experience in matters related to 
tourism programs.  

(c) Members shall not hold any elective position in the city.  

(d) The members shall be appointed by the mayor, subject to approval of the city council.  

(e) An effort shall be made to appoint members to the board who represent various segments 
of the hospitality industry, including, festivals, special events, attractions, lodging, dining, 
the University of Northern Iowa, city businesses, and the community at-large while making 
a good faith effort to maintain gender equity as required by state law.  

(f) In so far as reasonably practicable, appointees for membership on the board shall be 
residents of the city, or, if that is not reasonably practicable, shall have a place of 
employment in the city. Appointees who are neither residents of the city nor who have a 
place of employment in the city may be eligible for appointment to the board upon a finding 
of the unavailability of qualified applicants, as determined by the mayor. Any person who is 
a member of the board on the date of adoption of the ordinance from which this article is 
derived who does not meet the qualifications for membership set forth herein shall continue 
to be eligible to serve as a member of the board until both the expiration of his current term 
and the member's non-reappointment by the mayor to an additional term.  

(Code 2017, § 20-322; Ord. No. 2820, § 1, 6-9-2014; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-301. Term of office of board members. 

The term of office of the members of the city tourism board shall be three years. 
Appointments to fill vacancies shall be for the unexpired term of any board member.  

(Code 2017, § 20-323; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-302. Compensation of members of board. 

All members of the city tourism board shall serve without compensation, except for their 
actual expenses, which shall be subject to the approval of the city council.  

(Code 2017, § 20-324; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-303. Absence of members from board meetings. 

Members of the city tourism board absent from three consecutive or five total meetings of 
the board in a year, except in the case of sickness or temporary absence from the city, without 
due explanation of absence, shall surrender their office. The mayor shall then fill the vacant 
position, with city council approval.  

(Code 2017, § 20-325; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-304. Director of community development to serve as ex-officio member of board. 

The director of community development shall serve as an ex-officio member of the city 
tourism board, without voting privileges.  

(Code 2017, § 20-326; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2943, § 4, 6-3-2019) 

79

Item 8.



Sec. 17-305. Powers and duties of board. 

The city tourism board shall have and possess the following powers and duties and such 
other powers as may be incidental thereto as necessary, and such other powers as may be 
expressly conferred upon it by law:  

(1) To adopt rules and regulations governing the board's organization and procedure as 
may be deemed necessary. All bylaws, rules or regulations shall be consistent with 
state, federal and local statutes and shall be subject to the approval of the city council.  

(2) To develop and provide tourism programs for visitors to the city based on the level of 
financial support provided by the city council and other entities.  

(3) To enhance the economic development of the city by promoting the city as a visitors 
destination and as a viable setting to hold meetings, conventions, special events and 
community attractions.  

(4) To determine the operations and programming policy for tourism events, that will be 
administered by the department of community development through the manager of 
tourism/cultural programs division.  

(5) To serve as the city's review agency and coordinator of all outside agency and special 
group requests for city financial support related to the use of hotel/motel tax proceeds 
to support visitors and tourism services.  

(6) To recommend to the city council the approval of grants, projects or programs when 
necessary and timely as a part of the city's annual budget process.  

(7) To recommend to the city council for its approval guidelines and policies related to 
grant application processes, procedures and authorizations.  

(8) To recommend to the city council expenditures by the community development 
department on behalf of the city and board in conformance with the board's program 
policies.  

(Code 2017, § 20-327; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2943, § 4, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 17-306. Appropriation of funds for tourism services and programs. 

The city council may annually appropriate a sum of money from the city's share of state 
hotel/motel tax receipts for the payment of a portion of the expense of operating the 
tourism/cultural programs division and programs.  

(Code 2017, § 20-328; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014

80

Item 8.



INTRODUCED:      April 1, 2024    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:    April 1, 2024    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:         

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI:         

ADOPTED:            

                                                                                               

                                                                                                     

Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

      
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

81

Item 8.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: March 25, 2024 

 SUBJECT: City Code of Ordinances Change Request – Tourism Board II 
  
 
 
Attached please find recommended changes to the City Code of Ordinances Subsection  
(15) of Section 2-277, Subpart of Subsection (B) of Section 2-654, and Subsection (14) 
of Section 2-655. 
 
Upon approval of the revisions to the previously mentioned City Code of Ordinances 
Chapter 17, Article VIII. Visitors And Tourism Board, we suggest these additional 
updates to keep division and building names consistent throughout the code including 
the references in sections relating to information provided to City Council and duties of 
the Director of Community Development.  
 
The document is red-lined so you can easily see proposed updates. 
 
 
Staff recommends Council approval.   
 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

82

Item 9.



 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING REFERENCES TO THE VISITORS AND 

TOURISM BOARD TO REFERENCES TO THE TOURISM BOARD, BY 

AMENDING THE FOLLOWING: 

SUBSECTION (15), OF SECTION 2-277, INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED 
TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, OF CHAPTER 2, 
ADMINISTRATION; 

SUBPART 1(b) OF SUBSECTION (B), POWERS AND DUTIES, OF SECTION 
2-654, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT—GENERALLY, OF 
DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE VI, DEPARTMENT OF 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, OF CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION; 

SUBSECTION (14), OF SECTION 2-655, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT—DUTIES RELATIVE TO BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND 
COMMITTEES, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE VI, 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, OF CHAPTER 2, 
ADMINISTRATION; 

ALL IN THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                Section 1.  Unnumbered Subsection (15), of Section 2-277, Information to be 

Provided to Mayor and Council, of Division 1, Generally, of Article IV, Department of Community 

Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new unnumbered Subsection (15) is enacted 

in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-277. Information to be provided to mayor and council. 

The following boards and commissions of the city, together with any other boards or commissions of the city 
established by the city council from time to time, shall provide the mayor and the city council with the following 
available information as to notice and agenda of official meetings, minutes of all official meetings, financial 
information and reports, as the information is provided to the following boards and commissions:  

                                           [unchanged provisions omitted] 

                          (15) Visitors and Ttourism board.  

 

83

Item 9.



                   Section 2.    Unnumbered Subpart 1(b), of Subsection (b), Powers and Duties, of 
Section 2-654, Director of Community Development—Generally, of Division 1, Generally, of 
Article VI, Department of Community Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new 
Unnumbered Subpart 1(b) is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-654. Director of community development—Generally. 

                                            [unchanged provisions omitted] 

(b) Powers and duties. 

(1) The director of community development shall supervise, direct and manage the conduct of the 
following divisions:  

a. Planning and community services.  

b. Visitors and Ttourism/cultural programs.  

c. Inspection services.  

d. Recreation and community programs.  

 

                    Section 2.    Unnumbered Subsection (14), of Section 2-655, Director of Community 
Development—Duties Relative to Boards, Commissions and Committees, of Division 1, 
Generally, of Article VI, Department of Community Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, 
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and 
a new Unnumbered Subsection (14) is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-655. Director of community development—Duties relative to boards, commissions and 

committees. 

The director of community development or the director's designee shall meet regularly with and furnish such 
assistance and information to the following commissions, boards, committees and other organizations when 
necessary:  

                                        [unchanged provisions omitted] 

               (14) Visitors and Ttourism board.  

 

 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

                                                                                               

84

Item 9.



                                                                                              ____________________ 

                                                                                                Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

85

Item 9.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 3056 

 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING REFERENCES TO THE VISITORS AND TOURISM 

BOARD TO REFERENCES TO THE TOURISM BOARD, BY AMENDING THE 

FOLLOWING: 

SUBSECTION (15), OF SECTION 2-277, INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED TO 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, OF CHAPTER 2, 
ADMINISTRATION; 

SUBPART 1(b) OF SUBSECTION (B), POWERS AND DUTIES, OF SECTION 2-654, 
DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT—GENERALLY, OF DIVISION 1, 
GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE VI, DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, 
OF CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION; 

SUBSECTION (14), OF SECTION 2-655, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT—DUTIES RELATIVE TO BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND 
COMMITTEES, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE VI, DEPARTMENT OF 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, OF CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION; 

ALL IN THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                Section 1.  Unnumbered Subsection (15), of Section 2-277, Information to be 

Provided to Mayor and Council, of Division 1, Generally, of Article IV, Department of Community 

Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new unnumbered Subsection (15) is enacted 

in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-277. Information to be provided to mayor and council. 

The following boards and commissions of the city, together with any other boards or 
commissions of the city established by the city council from time to time, shall provide the mayor 
and the city council with the following available information as to notice and agenda of official 
meetings, minutes of all official meetings, financial information and reports, as the information is 
provided to the following boards and commissions:  

                                           [unchanged provisions omitted] 

                          (15)  Tourism board.  

                   Section 2.    Unnumbered Subpart 1(b), of Subsection (b), Powers and Duties, of 
Section 2-654, Director of Community Development—Generally, of Division 1, Generally, of 
Article VI, Department of Community Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new 
Unnumbered Subpart 1(b) is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

86

Item 9.



Sec. 2-654. Director of community development—Generally. 

                                            [unchanged provisions omitted] 

(b) Powers and duties. 

(1) The director of community development shall supervise, direct and manage the 
conduct of the following divisions:  

a. Planning and community services.  

b. Tourism/cultural programs.  

c. Inspection services.  

d. Recreation and community programs.  

                    Section 2.    Unnumbered Subsection (14), of Section 2-655, Director of Community 
Development—Duties Relative to Boards, Commissions and Committees, of Division 1, 
Generally, of Article VI, Department of Community Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, 
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and 
a new Unnumbered Subsection (14) is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-655. Director of community development—Duties relative to boards, commissions 

and committees. 

The director of community development or the director's designee shall meet regularly with 
and furnish such assistance and information to the following commissions, boards, committees 
and other organizations when necessary:  

                                        [unchanged provisions omitted] 

               (14) Tourism board.  

 

INTRODUCED:     April 1, 2024     

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   April 1, 2024     

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:         

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:         

ADOPTED:                                                                    

                                                                                                 

              

                                                                                              Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

      

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

87

Item 9.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: March 25, 2024 

 SUBJECT: City Code of Ordinances Change Request – Tourism Board III 
  
 
 
Attached please find recommended changes to the City Code of Ordinances Division 3, 
Visitors And Tourism/Cultural Programs Division, of Article VI, Department of 
Community Development, Chapter 2, Administration. 
 
Upon approval of the revisions to the previously mentioned City Code of Ordinances 
Chapter 17, Article VIII. Visitors And Tourism Board, we suggest these additional 
updates to keep division and building names consistent throughout the code including 
the references in sections relating to information about the division and its manager.  
 
The document is red-lined so you can easily see proposed updates. 
 
 
Staff recommends Council approval.   
 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

88

Item 10.



 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING DIVISION 3, VISITORS AND 

TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION, OF ARTICLE VI, 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, OF CHAPTER 2, 

ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, CONSISTING OF SECTION  2-715, CREATED; 

SECTION 2-716, POWERS AND DUTIES; SECTION 2-717, MANAGER; AND 

SECTION 2-718, ACTING MANAGER BY STRIKING SAID DIVISION IN ITS 

ENTIRETY AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 3, 

TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION, CONSISTING OF THE SAME 

SECTIONS WITH THE SAME TITLES, SO AS TO CHANGE THE NAME OF 

THE DIVISION. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                Division 3, Visitors and Tourism/Cultural Programs Division, of Article VI, Department 

of Community Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new Division 3, Tourism/Cultural 

Programs Division, consisting of Section 2-715, Created, Section 2-716, Powers and Duties, 

Section 2-717, Manager, and Section 2-718, Acting Manager, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

DIVISION 3. VISITORS AND TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION1 

Sec. 2-715. Created. 

The visitors and tourism/cultural programs division of the department of community development for the 
city is hereby created.  

(Code 2017, § 2-581; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 2-716. Powers and duties. 

(a) It shall be the duty of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division of the department of community 
development to provide visitors and tourism programs and services for the visitors and tourists to the city 
that promote overnight lodging, purchase of goods and services from city businesses, and promote special 
events, festivals, and attractions in the city; and to provide cultural programs for the citizens of the city, 
including fine arts, performing arts, spectator arts and crafts.  

(b) The division shall have the power to operate and maintain the visitors and tourism/cultural programs 
services offices, in compliance with the operations and programming policy prescribed by the city visitors 
and tourism board, the director of community development, and the city council; and to operate and 
maintain the James and Meryl Hearst Art and Culture Center for the Arts, in compliance with the operations 

 

 

89

Item 10.



 

 

and programming policy prescribed by the city art and culture board, the director of community 
development, and the city council.  

(Code 2017, § 2-582; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 2-717. Manager. 

(a) Appointment. A visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager shall be appointed by the director 
of community development. Such appointment shall be in accordance with all statutory civil service 
procedures.  

(b) Powers and duties. The visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager shall supervise, direct and 
manage the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division. The manager's powers and duties shall be as 
follows:  

(1) To promulgate orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the members of the 
visitors and tourism/cultural programs division within the parameters of city, departmental, visitors 
and tourism board policies, and art and culture board policies.  

(2) To make an annual report of the activities of the division for each fiscal year, to be filed with the 
community development director, the visitors and tourism board, the art and culture board, and the 
city council.  

(3) To assign the personnel of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division as deemed necessary to 
carry out the functions of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division, and to prescribe rules 
and regulations for the conduct and management of the division consistent with city and departmental 
policies, visitors and tourism board policies, and art and culture board policies.  

(4) To perform or cause to be performed any other duties as directed by the director of community 
development.  

(5) To manage the visitors and tourism offices, programs and projects in accord with operations and 
programming policies established by the city visitors and tourism board, the director of community 
development, and the city council; and to manage the James and Meryl Hearst Art and Culture Center 
for the Arts, in compliance with operations and programming policies established by the city art and 
culture board, the director of community development, and the city council.  

(6) To implement a full range of visitors and tourism programs for the city within the financial constraints 
and program offerings recommended by the visitors and tourism board and authorized by the city 
council.  

(7) To implement a full range of art and cultural programs for the city within the financial constraints and 
program offerings recommended by the art and culture board and authorized by the city council.  

(8) To maintain for the city visitors and tourism board and for the art and culture board:  

a. Full and complete records of all proceedings.  

b. Full and complete records of all receipts and disbursements in conjunction with the financial 

services division.  

c. Full and complete records of all donations, devices and bequests received and disbursed, or 

placed in special accounts in conjunction with the financial services division.  

d. An inventory of all pictures, paintings, statues, relics, books, papers, journals, supplies, 

equipment, and other property held by the division in the city's name in conjunction with 

the financial services division.  

(Code 2017, § 2-583; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019) 

90

Item 10.



 

 

Sec. 2-718. Acting manager. 

Whenever the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager is out of the city or is unable to act on 
account of sickness or for any other reason, including those periods of time when the director of community 
development has not appointed a visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager, the visitors and 
tourism/cultural programs division manager or the director of community development shall appoint a designee 
who shall have and exercise all the powers and duties of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division 
manager.  

(Code 2017, § 2-584; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-201 

 

 

 

 

Secs. 2-719—2-741. Reserved. 

 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

                                                                                               

                                                                                              ____________________ 

                                                                                                Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

91

Item 10.



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 3057 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING DIVISION 3, VISITORS AND 

TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION, OF ARTICLE VI, 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, OF CHAPTER 2, 

ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, CONSISTING OF SECTION  2-715, CREATED; 

SECTION 2-716, POWERS AND DUTIES; SECTION 2-717, MANAGER; AND 

SECTION 2-718, ACTING MANAGER BY STRIKING SAID DIVISION IN ITS 

ENTIRETY AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 3, 

TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION, CONSISTING OF THE SAME 

SECTIONS WITH THE SAME TITLES, SO AS TO CHANGE THE NAME OF 

THE DIVISION. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

Division 3, Visitors and Tourism/Cultural Programs Division, of Article VI, Department of 

Community Development, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new Division 3, Tourism/Cultural 

Programs Division, consisting of Section 2-715, Created, Section 2-716, Powers and Duties, 

Section 2-717, Manager, and Section 2-718, Acting Manager, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

DIVISION 3. TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION1 Sec. 2-715. Created 

The tourism/cultural programs division of the department of community development for 

the city is hereby created. 

(Code 2017, § 2-581; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 2-716. Powers and duties. 

(a) It shall be the duty of the tourism/cultural programs division of the department of 
community development to provide tourism programs and services for the visitors and 
tourists to the city that promote overnight lodging, purchase of goods and services from city 
businesses, and promote special events, festivals, and attractions in the city; and to 
provide cultural programs for the citizens of the city, including fine arts, performing arts, 
spectator arts and crafts.  

(b) The division shall have the power to operate and maintain the tourism/cultural programs 
services offices, in compliance with the operations and programming policy prescribed by 
the city tourism board, the director of community development, and the city council; and to 
operate and maintain the Hearst Center for the Arts, in compliance with the operations and 

92

Item 10.



programming policy prescribed by the city art and culture board, the director of community 
development, and the city council.  

(Code 2017, § 2-582; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019)  

 

Sec. 2-717. Manager. 

(a) Appointment. A tourism/cultural programs division manager shall be appointed by the 
director of community development. Such appointment shall be in accordance with all 
statutory civil service procedures.  

(b) Powers and duties. The tourism/cultural programs division manager shall supervise, direct 
and manage the tourism/cultural programs division. The manager's powers and duties shall 
be as follows:  

(1) To promulgate orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the 
members of the tourism/cultural programs division within the parameters of city, 
departmental, tourism board policies, and art and culture board policies.  

(2) To make an annual report of the activities of the division for each fiscal year, to be 
filed with the community development director, the tourism board, the art and culture 
board, and the city council.  

(3) To assign the personnel of the tourism/cultural programs division as deemed 
necessary to carry out the functions of the tourism/cultural programs division, and to 
prescribe rules and regulations for the conduct and management of the division 
consistent with city and departmental policies, tourism board policies, and art and 
culture board policies.  

(4) To perform or cause to be performed any other duties as directed by the director of 
community development.  

(5) To manage the tourism offices, programs and projects in accord with operations and 
programming policies established by the city tourism board, the director of community 
development, and the city council; and to manage the Hearst Center for the Arts, in 
compliance with operations and programming policies established by the city art and 
culture board, the director of community development, and the city council.  

(6) To implement a full range of tourism programs for the city within the financial 
constraints and program offerings recommended by the tourism board and authorized 
by the city council.  

(7) To implement a full range of art and cultural programs for the city within the financial 
constraints and program offerings recommended by the art and culture board and 
authorized by the city council.  

(8) To maintain for the city tourism board and for the art and culture board:  

a. Full and complete records of all proceedings.  

b. Full and complete records of all receipts and disbursements in conjunction with the 

financial services division.  

c. Full and complete records of all donations, devices and bequests received and 

disbursed, or placed in special accounts in conjunction with the financial services 

division.  

93

Item 10.



d. An inventory of all pictures, paintings, statues, relics, books, papers, journals, 

supplies, equipment, and other property held by the division in the city's name in 

conjunction with the financial services division.  

(Code 2017, § 2-583; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 2-718. Acting manager. 

Whenever the tourism/cultural programs division manager is out of the city or is unable to 
act on account of sickness or for any other reason, including those periods of time when the 
director of community development has not appointed a tourism/cultural programs division 
manager, the tourism/cultural programs division manager or the director of community 
development shall appoint a designee who shall have and exercise all the powers and duties of 
the tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(Code 2017, § 2-584; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2940, § 1, 6-3-201 

Secs. 2-719—2-741. Reserved. 

 

INTRODUCED:     April 1, 2024     

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   April 1, 2024     

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:         

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:         

ADOPTED:            

                                                                                               

 

                                                                                                    

                                                                                             Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

94

Item 10.



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, APRIL 1, 2024 
SPECIAL MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR DANIEL LAUDICK PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Special Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 5:15 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, 
Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Absent: none. 
 

54691 - Mayor Laudick announced that in accordance with the public notice of March 14, 
2024, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed FY2025 
property tax rate for the City of Cedar Falls. It was then moved by Kruse and 
seconded by Ganfield that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54692 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed FY2025 property tax rate. Upon being advised that there were no 
written communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Director 
of Finance & Business Operations Rodenbeck provided an update. There being 
no one else present wishing to speak about the proposed FY2025 property tax 
rate, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of 
business. 

 
54693 - Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Ganfield, Kruse, Dunn, 

Hawbaker, Crisman, Schultz, and Latta, and Mayor Laudick, and responses by 
Director of Finance & Business Operations Rodenbeck, Director of Community 
Development Sheetz , Director of Public Safety Berte, and City Administrator 
Gaines, it was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to give staff direction 
to create a budget proposal with the following five changes:  increase of $50,000 
in hotel/motel revenue in the General Fund budget; transfer $100,000 surplus 
from  FY2024  to buydown property tax; remove the Aquatic Supervisor position 
from the budget; remove the Policy and Administration Specialist position from 
the budget; and reduce housing conversion to $50,000. Following comments by 
City Attorney Rogers, Rodenbeck, and Mayor Laudick, questions and comments 
by Councilmembers Kruse, Hawbaker, Dunn, Ganfield, Schultz, and Latta, and 
additional responses by Rodenbeck, Mayor Laudick, and Rogers, it was moved 
by Hawbaker to call the question. Motion carried unanimously. The original 
motion then failed 2-5, with Schultz, Latta, Hawbaker, Crisman, and Dunn voting 
Nay. 

 
54694 It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to increase by $50,000 the 

hotel/motel revenue in the General Fund budget.  Motion failed 2-5, with Schultz, 
Latta, Hawbaker, Crisman, and Dunn voting Nay.   

 
54695 It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to transfer $100,000 surplus 

from FY2024 to buydown property tax.  Following a question by Ganfield and 
response by Rodenbeck, the motion passed 4-3, with Hawbaker, Crisman and 
Dunn voting Nay.  

 
 

95

Item 11.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

54696 It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to remove the Aquatic 
Supervisor position from the budget. Motion failed 3-4, with Schultz, Latta, 
Crisman, and Dunn voting Nay.   

 
54697 It was moved by Schultz and seconded by Kruse to remove the Policy and 

Administration Specialist position from the budget.  Motion failed 2-5, with 
Schultz, Latta, Hawbaker, Crisman, and Dunn voting Nay. 

 
54698 It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to reduce the housing 

conversion budget to $50,000.  Motion carried 4-3, with Latta, Crisman and Dunn 
voting Nay. 

 
54699- It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Kruse that the meeting be adjourned at 

6:49 P.M. Motion carried unanimously.   
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

96

Item 11.



97

Item 12.



98

Item 12.



BEFORE THE CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IN RE:       ORDER ACCEPTING 

PMA North Cedar, LLC    ACKNOWLEDGMENT/ 

d/b/a Prime Mart     SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

2728 Center Street      FIRST VIOLATION   

Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 ON this ______ day of _______________, 2024, in lieu of a public hearing on the 

matter, the Cedar Falls City Council approves the attached Acknowledgment/Settlement 

Agreement between the above-captioned permittee and the City of Cedar Falls. 

 Therefore, the Cedar Falls City Council FINDS that the above-captioned 

permittee has remitted to the "City of Cedar Falls" a civil penalty in the amount of Three 

Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($300.00).  Be advised that this sanction will count as a first 

violation of Iowa Code Section 453A.2(1), pursuant to Iowa Code Section 453A.22(2)(a).  

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the judgment in this matter is hereby satisfied. 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

      City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

99

Item 13.



100

Item 13.



101

Item 13.



102

Item 13.



103

Item 13.



104

Item 13.



105

Item 13.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Laudick and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  April 8, 2024 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would 
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Berk's Main Street Pub, 207 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
 

b) ZSAVOOZ, 206 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 

c) Happy’s Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 5 day 
permit. 

 

106

Item 14.



 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR THE CREATION OF THE CEDAR FALLS 
LOCAL HOUSING TRUST FUND 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is supportive of the development of a non-profit 
organization in the community that will be recognized by the Iowa Finance Authority and the 
State of Iowa as a certified Local Housing Trust Fund (LHTF), eligible to be identified as such, 
to act as a public engagement forum for housing, and to receive funding allocations as the City 
may award and assign; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing housing opportunities for all 

residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2023 Housing Needs Assessment showed housing needs of the 

community were not being met solely by the market; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls has been impacted through the inability of workers to 

find housing, potential residents being unable to afford housing in order to relocate to Cedar 
Falls, UNI students being unable to find suitable rental housing in the community, persons having 
to choose between housing and other basic necessities because of the high price of housing, 
lack of decent affordable rental housing, lack of habitable structures, and inability of first time 
homebuyers to purchase a home in the community; and  

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best interest 

of the City of City Falls, Iowa, to support the creation of the Cedar Falls Local Housing Trust 
Fund.  
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
that the Cedar Falls City Council agrees to endorse the development of a LHTF in Cedar Falls, 
with the intent that the organization would act as a means of identifying and offering housing 
solutions designed for our unique circumstances and challenges. 
 

ADOPTED this 15th day of April 2024. 
 
 

   

  Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
 
   

   

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk   
 

107

Item 16.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

TO:   Mayor Laudick and City Council 
 

FROM:   Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 
 

DATE:  April 5, 2024 
 

SUBJECT:   2007 College Street 
  College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan  
                       
 
As City Council may recall, City staff worked with the College Hill Partnership to develop 
and establish the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan (Partial Exemption Taxation) 
based on prior Council guidance and approval. The primary focus of this Plan is to 
promote residential development and preservation by private entities on residential 
properties within the College Hill District. The Plan, which was adopted by the council 
on June 25, 2012, is also intended to stimulate residential conservation, rehabilitation, 
development or redevelopment in the area. 
 
The general boundaries of the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan are Summit Drive, 
Campus Street, College Street (west); W. 29th Street (south); Franklin Street (east); 
and W. 18th Street (north). 
 
Under the approved Urban Revitalization Plan, a partial exemption of taxation is 
available to residential properties where the improvements increase the actual value of 
the structure by at least 10%. The application must be filed with the City no later than 2 
years after the February 1st following the year the improvements are first assessed. The 
application must be formally approved by the City Council. The partial exemption from 
taxation is equal to 100 percent of the actual value added by the improvements for a 
period of five (5) years and is subject to review by the Black Hawk County Assessor 
after the project is completed.  
 
DBD Investments, LLC is submitting a proposal for completed improvements under the 
College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan. The cost of improvements to 2007 College Street 
was estimated at $200,000 and involved a complete exterior upgrade to the dwelling, 
including new windows and siding, as well as interior updates, including new kitchens 
and new bathrooms. 
 
 

108

Item 17.



City staff recommends that City Council take the following action: 
 
Adopt a Resolution approving application for tax abatement under the College Hill 
Urban Revitalization Plan for the property located at 2007 College Street. 
 
If you have any questions please feel free to contact me. 
 
                     
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 
 
 

109

Item 17.



Property Location
College St

I

_̂

W. 18th St

W. 20th St

W. 20th St

Su
mm

it D
r

Walnut St

Franklin St

Tremont St

Iowa St

W. 29th St

University Ave

Seerley Blvd

W. 22nd St

W 19th St

College Hill Urban
Revitalization Area Application
2007 College Street

110

Item 17.



111

Item 17.



112

Item 17.



113

Item 17.



114

Item 17.



115

Item 17.



116

Item 17.



117

Item 17.



118

Item 17.



119

Item 17.



120

Item 17.



121

Item 17.



122

Item 17.



123

Item 17.



124

Item 17.



125

Item 17.



126

Item 17.



127

Item 17.



128

Item 17.



129

Item 17.



130

Item 17.



131

Item 17.



 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.__________ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT UNDER THE 
COLLEGE HILL URBAN REVITALIZATION PLAN 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls has designated an area of the City as the 
College Hill Urban Revitalization Area pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 404 of the 
Code of Iowa, and meeting the criteria of Section 404.1 of the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, an application has been submitted by DBD Investments, LLC, for tax 
abatement under the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan for improvements located at 
2007 College Street within the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the application has been reviewed and the project determined to be 
an eligible improvement in conformance with the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, that said improvement project is deemed to be in conformance with the College 
Hill Urban Revitalization Plan, being eligible to receive a partial exemption from taxation 
equal to 100% of the Actual Value added by the improvements for a period of five (5) 
years, and that said application is hereby approved, subject to review by the Black 
Hawk County Assessor pursuant to the Act. 
 
 
 ADOPTED this 15th day of April 2024. 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

132

Item 17.



    ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: April 5, 2024 

SUBJECT:      LAFORGE, LLC High Quality Jobs Program Application 
 
 
For the past several weeks, staff has been working with representatives of LAFORGE, 
LLC to submit a High Quality Jobs Program application to the Iowa Economic 
Development Authority. LAFORGE is currently located at 1824 Lincoln Street, and 
manufactures industrial overhead cranes, and provides machining and fabrication 
services to businesses located in the Cedar Valley. The High Quality Jobs Program 
provides qualifying businesses tax credits and direct financial assistance to offset some 
of the costs incurred to locate, expand or modernize an Iowa facility. Through this 
program, LAFORGE, LLC will be applying for a Sales, Service and Use Tax Refund, an 
Investment Tax Credit, and 260F Job Training Funds. The total tax credits and indirect 
financing being applied for in regard to this project is $124,750. 
 
Per the requirements of the High Quality Jobs Program, since this project will be 
increasing the taxable valuation to the property (as reviewed by the Black Hawk County 
Assessor), the City must also provide a local match on the project, by way of a 5-year 
partial property tax abatement on the increased valuation that the project creates. 
Based on the projected increased valuation of the property after the project is complete, 
the City match is estimated to be $4,625 in partial tax abatements over the 5-year 
period.  
 
A copy of the completed Business Financial Assistance Application for LAFORGE, LLC 
is attached for your review. As you can see in the application, the project that 
LAFORGE, LLC is planning on at their Cedar Falls location includes renovation work to 
the existing building, including a new roof and solar panels, as well as purchasing new 
machinery and equipment and installing new parking lot paving. The total cost for this 
project is estimated to be $2,445,000. In addition to the building renovations and 
machinery and equipment purchases, the company also plans to hire 6 new full-time 
employees. 
 
 
 

133

Item 18.



Staff recommends that City Council approve and adopt the following: 
 

1. Resolution of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa approving the 
application of LAFORGE, LLC to the Iowa Economic Development Authority High 
Quality Jobs Program. 

 

 
If you have any questions pertaining to this project, please feel free to contact me. 
 

 
 xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Tim Whitaker, LAFORGE, LLC 
       Alaina Santizo, Iowa Economic Development Authority 
       Lisa Skubal, Grow Cedar Valley 
 
         
        
 
 

134

Item 18.



Project Location

Leversee Rd

U.
S. 

HW
Y 2

18

Lincoln St

Rail Way

LAFORGE, LLC
IEDA High Quality Jobs
Program Application
1824 Lincoln Street

¨
1 " = 400 '135

Item 18.



136

Item 18.



137

Item 18.



138

Item 18.



139

Item 18.



140

Item 18.



141

Item 18.



IEDA – Business Financial Assistance Application   7 v.10.6.2021 
 

 
5. Please complete the chart below with tax credits and other indirect financing expected for the project: 

TAX CREDITS AND INDIRECT FINANCING 
Source of Funds Amount Description 
Investment Tax Credit $72,000  
Sales, Service and Use Tax Refund $27,750  
Research Activities Credit (3%/10%)   
Local Property Tax Exemption $4,625  
Tax Increment Financing   
260F Job Training Funds* $25,000  
In-kind Contribution   
Other   
TOTAL $129,375  
*260E Job Training Funds – This application does not commit the 260E funds. Training funds require a 
separate application and agreement between company and its local community college.  
Community College Workforce Training Contacts 
 

6. There are three justifiable reasons for providing assistance. Check the box next to the reason why 
assistance is needed to complete this project. 
 

 Financing Gap - A gap exists between the financing required and the financing on-hand, and the provision of 
tax incentives or assistance is necessary to fill the gap.   

 Rate of Return Gap –The likely returns of the project are inadequate to motivate a company decision maker 
to proceed with the project even if sufficient debt or equity can be raised to finance the project, and the 
project’s risks outweigh its rewards, making the provision of tax incentives or assistance necessary to reduce 
the project’s risks. 

 Location Disadvantage (Incentive) –The business is deciding between a site in Iowa (“Iowa site”) and a site 
in another state (“out-of-state site”) for its project, and the cost of completing the project at the out-of-state site 
is demonstrably lower, making tax incentives or assistance necessary to equalize the cost differential 
between the two sites. Note: The authority will attempt to quantify the cost differential between the sites. 

 
7. Please provide a brief explanation of the need for assistance. 
These incentives will assist us in being able to update our facility and be able to procure equipment to be able to 
support our growth plans in Cedar Falls. Without the possibility of these incentives our ambitions would be 
significantly more limited. The improved ROI on items like the Roof and Air Compressor provided by these incentives 
make the business case presented to our ownership that much more appealing. These investments are being 
introduced at an opportune time as our new leadership team charts the course for our company's vision for the future. 
By investing in solar and recycling we are demonstrating our commitment to being environmentally aware and are 
taking steps to limit our impact to our planet. We are confident the momentum from the increased sales, improved 
profitability and enhanced technology will allow LAFORGE, LLC to grow into a preferred supplier and employer in the 
Cedar Valley for years to come.  

SECTION D 
Employee Benefits 
There are three options to meeting the sufficient benefit requirement. These options are detailed in the chart 
below. Please complete questions 1-3.  If your company meets Option 1 or 2, no additional information is 
required. To utilize Option 3, please also complete questions 4-6. 

  Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 
70% single Coverage 60% Family coverage  Monetary Equivalent 

Total Number of 
Employees in 

US 

Pay 70% of premium costs 
for a standard medical plan, 

single coverage. 

Pay 60% of premium costs for 
a standard medical plan, 

family coverage. 

Provide medical and pay the 
monetary equivalent of Option 
1 or Option 2 in supplemental 
employee benefits. 
Benefits Counted Toward 
Monetary Equivalent: medical 

201+ $1700 maximum deductible $3750 maximum deductible 
50-200 $2500 maximum deductible $5250 maximum deductible 

0-49 $3000 maximum deductible $6000 Maximum deductible 

142

Item 18.

https://www.iowaworkforcedevelopment.gov/grow/community-college-contacts


143

Item 18.



144

Item 18.



145

Item 18.



146

Item 18.



147

Item 18.



 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA APPROVING THE APPLICATION OF LAFORGE, LLC TO THE IOWA 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY HIGH QUALITY JOBS 

PROGRAM 

 

 WHEREAS, The City of Cedar Falls has received a request by LAFORGE, LLC 

to approve and submit an application to the State of Iowa for the High Quality Jobs 

Program; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the programs were established to promote economic development 

and job creation in the State of Iowa; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council supports activities which promote and facility 

economic development within Cedar Falls; and 

 

 WHEREAS, LAFORGE, LLC has indicated they will: 

 

1. Create 6 new full-time, or career positions. 

2. Provide comprehensive health benefits to its employees. 

3. Make a capital investment of approximately $2,445,000. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

a. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls approves the application of 

LAFORGE, LLC for the purpose of receiving benefits from the High 

Quality Jobs Program. 

b. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls approves the local match 

policy requirement of the Iowa Economic Development Authority and 

approves a local match in the approximate amount of $4,625 in tax 

abatements over a 5-year period. 

c. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls authorizes the Mayor and City 

Clerk to take such further actions as deemed necessary in order to carry 

into effect the provisions of this Resolution. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

148

Item 18.



 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 15th day of April, 2024. 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

149

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: April 4, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Grant Agreement: Community Attraction & Tourism 
  Community Natatorium Project 
 
 
In September 2023, the City Council approved a resolution to apply for the State of 
Iowa’s Enhance Iowa Community Attraction & Tourism (CAT) Grant.  It was submitted in 
November 2023.  The City, School District, and Jump In fundraising group presented to 
the CAT Board in January and February.  An award was made at their March meeting 
for $400,000.   
 
This grant would support construction of Phase 2 of the Community Natatorium which 
includes two pools and all the infrastructure to open and operate a functional pool.  
Phase 1 is currently under construction, building the shell and site improvements.    
 

The City Council approved a 28E Agreement for Swimming Pool Use, Operation and 
Maintenance in June 2023 along with a resolution to fund the pool $4,000,000 in FY24 
and $4,000,000 FY25.  The project funding is summarized below: 
 

Funding Source Amount 

City $8,000,000  

School District $8,450,000 

Private (17%) $3,587,650  

Black Hawk County1 $150,000  

Black Hawk County Gaming2 $500,000  

Federal/State Grants $400,000  

Total $21,087,650  

 
The City is the lead on the grant, with the School District a co-applicant.  Both entities 
must sign the grant agreement.  The School District is the owner and will be bidding the 
project as well as overseeing construction. 

                                                           
1 Subject to receiving the CAT grant. 
2 Grant agreement approved in January 2024. 

150

Item 19.



 
Two goals in the adopted Council Goals, Work Program and Financial Plan for FY25 
are achieved with this project:   

5.C.13) Continue collaboration with CFCSD on the development of plans for a 
new indoor community pool, co-located with the new Cedar Falls High 
School. 

5.C.21.c) Consider funding for quality-of-life projects with other entities: 
Additional ask for High School Pool (total City funding $8M) 

 
The Department of Community Development recommends to the City Council approving 
the attached Community Attraction & Tourism Grant Agreement. 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution to Approve 
 Grant Agreement (Exhibit A) 

 
xc:  Dr. Andy Pattee, Superintendent (School District) 

151

Item 19.



RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING A  
COMMUNITY ATTRACTION AND TOURISM GRANT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE ENHANCE IOWA BOARD AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS  
IN THE AMOUNT OF $400,000 

 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Iowa has funded the Community Attraction and Tourism (CAT) 
program to support community projects that build on Iowa's unique assets and values 
and expand the recreational, cultural, educational, and entertainment opportunities in 
Iowa; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls applied to the Enhance Iowa Board requesting CAT 
assistance to help finance the Community Natatorium, a project in conjunction with the 
Cedar Falls School District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Enhance Iowa Board found the Project meets the requirements 
established for participation in the CAT Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board voted to award a Grant of $400,000 to the City of Cedar Falls 
and the Cedar Falls School District to assist in funding the Project, subject to the terms 
and conditions in Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, an agreement has been prepared between the Enhance Iowa Board and 
the City of Cedar Falls; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Black Hawk County, Iowa, does hereby approve the Community Attraction and Tourism 
(CAT) Grant Agreement. The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the 
agreement and execute such other documents that are necessary on the City of Cedar 
Falls’ behalf. 
 
Passed and approved this 15th day of April, 2024. 
 
 
        ______________________ 
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

152

Item 19.



153

Item 19.



154

Item 19.



155

Item 19.



156

Item 19.



157

Item 19.



158

Item 19.



159

Item 19.



160

Item 19.



161

Item 19.



162

Item 19.



163

Item 19.



164

Item 19.



165

Item 19.



166

Item 19.



167

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS  

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Principal Engineer, PhD, PE 
 
 DATE: April 8th, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement 
  Foth Infrastructure & Environmental, LLC 
  Main Street Reconstruction Project (6th Street to University Avenue) 
  City Project Number: BR-000-3283 
  Supplemental Agreement No. 1 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval is the Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 
Professional Services Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Foth 
Infrastructure & Environmental, LLC for the Main Street Reconstruction Project (6th 
Street to University Avenue). This Supplemental Agreement provides for provides for 
continued construction administration services to assist the City in implementing the 
construction contract for this project until construction is complete. The consultant will 
continue to perform shop drawing submittal reviews, engineering site visits, requests for 
information, plan reviews, change orders, and record drawings. Compensation for the 
services shall be on an hourly basis and in a total amount not to exceed $175,936. 
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Foth 
Infrastructure & Environmental, LLC for the Main Street Reconstruction Project (6th 
Street to University Avenue) on July 19th, 2021. The project will be funded by General 
Obligation Bond, Federal/State Funding, Local Sales Tax, Street Construction Fund, 
American Rescue Plan, Storm Water Fund, Cedar Falls Utilities, and Tax Increment 
Financing – Downtown District. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department requests your consideration 
and approval of this Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Foth Infrastructure & 
Environmental, LLC for the Main Street Reconstruction Project (6th Street to University 
Avenue).  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

168

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls  

220 Clay Street  

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   

www.cedarfalls.com  
 

Engineering Division 

Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
  

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 
 

Main Street Reconstruction (6th Street to University Avenue) 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number RC-000-3283 
 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (Client), 
and Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC (Consultant), of 411 6th Avenue SE, Suite 400, Cedar Rapids, 
iowa 50401 dated July 15, 2021 for the professional services for the Main Street Reconstruction Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Client and Consultant desire to amend the previous agreement to include Compensation for 
additional items required as a part of the Main Street Reconstruction Project,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as follows:  
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 
 This task includes continued construction administration services to assist the Client in implementing 

the construction contract for this project until construction is complete. The CONSULTANT will 
continue to perform shop drawing submittal reviews, engineer site visits, requests for information 
(RFIs), plan reviews, change orders, and record drawings.  

 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.  Total compensation is a not 
to exceed fee of One Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty-Six Dollars ($175,936) 
for the Scope of Service item 1. The compensation for this supplemental agreement will be added 
to the total from the original agreement.   
 

III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the Client and Consultant shall remain as specified in the 
Professional Services Agreement dated July 16, 2018.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

169

Item 20.



Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC  Henry Property Traffic Study 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. EN – 289 – 3167 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 

APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT. 
 
 

By:  By:  
 
 

Printed Name:  Printed Name:                  
 
 

Title:  Title:                               
 
 

Date:  Date:  

170

Item 20.

APM
Text Box
Aaron Moniza

APM
Text Box
Senior Client Manager

APM
Text Box
3/6/2024

APM
Image



171

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
220 CLAY STREET 
319-268-5161 
FAX 319-268-5197` 

WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION 
501 E. 4TH STREET 
319-273-8633 
FAX 319-268-5566 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 

 
Prairie Parkway and Viking Road Intersection Improvements 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number RC-232-3308 

 
 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (CLIENT), 
and Snyder & Associates, Inc. (CONSULTANT), of Cedar Rapids, Iowa, dated June 5, 2023 for the Prairie 
Parkway and Viking Road Intersection Improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to amend the previous agreement to modify the Scope 
of Services and Compensation for Construction Phase items as a part of the Prairie Parkway and Viking Road 
Intersection Improvements,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the Scope of Services included with the Professional 
Services Agreement and specifically noted in Supplemental Agreement No. 1 as follows:  
 

I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation is as follows: 
 

A. The CONSULTANT shall complete topographic survey for the sites described below. 
1. The addition of a raised median and storm sewer work between Andrea Drive and Wal-

Mart Drive. 
2. Includes the area needed for sidewalk removal and trail improvements from Avenue of the 

Saints (Hwy 58) to 600 ft east of Andrea Drive.  
 

B. The CONSULTANT shall provide acquisition document updates as described: 
 

1. Revisions to a right-of-way acquisition document due to changes of required overhead 
electrical needs. Revised appraisal services are also needed. 
 

C. The CONSULTANT shall develop and incorporated into the plans and specifications the following: 
1. Design of the raised median and a single storm sewer intake between Andrea Drive and 

Wal-Mart Drive.  
2. Include eight new RRFB’s for all legs of the roundabout at Viking Rd and Prairie Parkway.  
3. Design a raised median with topsoil and grass between Walmart Dr and Winterbury Dr. 
4. Remove existing RRFB and crossing on Viking Road. 
5. Adjustments to acquisition areas and grading related to CFU electrical alignment changes.  
6. Revise plans to add a division for Traffic Safety Improvement Program items. Add 

documents to the project manual as required by the traffic safety funding agreement.  
7. Submit plans to the Iowa Department of Transportation for review. Review comments from 

the Iowa Department of Transportation and incorporate as necessary.  
8. Design of trail improvements from Avenue of the Saints (Hwy 58) to 600 ft east of Andrea 

Drive.  
All items include additional plan sheets, items, and quantities. Additional coordination meetings 

172

Item 21.



Prairie Parkway and Viking Road Intersection Improvements 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. SW-232-3308 

with the City and Cedar Falls Utilities.  

 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for this scope of Services modification shall be on an hourly basis in accordance 

with the hourly fees and other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.  
Total compensation for this amendment is a not to exceed fee of Fifty-one thousand one hundred 
($51,100). This compensation shall be added to and included with the services and monthly invoice 
for this project.  
 

III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the CLIENT and CONSULTANT shall remain as specified in 
the Professional Services Agreement dated June 5, 2023 and as previously modified by supplemental 
agreements.  

 
 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 

APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 

 

By:  By:  
 
 

Printed Name:  Printed Name:   Lindsay Beaman               
 
 

Title:  Title:        Business Unit Leader                      
 
 

Date:  Date:  3/14/2024  

173

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

––  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: April 15, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: 2024 Alley Reconstruction Project 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3335 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2024 Alley Reconstruction Project. 
 
We recommend setting Monday, May 6, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for the 
public hearing on this project, and Friday, May 10, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. as the date and 
time for receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be 
published by Friday, April 19, 2024. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for 
distribution to contractors on Tuesday, April 16th, 2024, allowing for two (2) weeks of 
review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the reconstruction of five (5) alleys, three (3) of which are concrete 
and two (2) of which are permeable alleys. Work shall include a combination of excavation 
and backfill of the alley areas; removal and replacement of driveway and sidewalk and of 
PCC curb & gutter; sub drain; placement of storage and filter aggregate; permeable 
interlocking clay brick paver installation, seeding, and concrete, asphalt, or gravel 
driveway replacement. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $582,973.00. The project 
will be funded by the Storm Water Fund, and Street Construction Fund.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2024 Alley 
Reconstruction Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

174

Item 22.



ITEM ITEM UNIT TOTAL
NO. CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST UNITS TOTAL UNITS TOTAL UNITS TOTAL UNITS TOTAL UNITS TOTAL UNITS TOTAL

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF-SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. $50.00 70 $3,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 19 $950.00 0 $0.00 25 $1,250.00 26 $1,300.00

2 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE C.Y. $30.00 588 $17,640.00 85 $2,550.00 41 $1,230.00 60 $1,800.00 71 $2,130.00 171 $5,130.00 160 $4,800.00

3 2010-108-I-0 SUBBASE, MODIFIED, 6 IN. S.Y. $17.00 1723 $29,291.00 516 $8,772.00 243 $4,131.00 358 $6,086.00 427 $7,259.00 123 $2,091.00 56 $952.00

4 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 18 IN. HDPE L.F. $60.00 155 $9,300.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 155 $9,300.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

5 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 24 IN. HDPE L.F. $120.00 291 $34,920.00 291 $34,920.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

6 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 30 IN. HDPE L.F. $130.00 42 $5,460.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 42 $5,460.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

7 4020-211 SPECIAL PIPE CONNECTIONS, SW-211 EACH $2,200.00 4 $8,800.00 2 $4,400.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $4,400.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

8 4020-108-D-1 REMOVAL STORM SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN. L.F. $30.00 571 $17,130.00 291 $8,730.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 280 $8,400.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

9 4040-108-A-0 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED, 6 IN. L.F. $25.00 592 $14,800.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 255 $6,375.00 337 $8,425.00

10 4040-108-C-1 SUBDRAIN CLEANOUT, TYPE A-1, 6" EACH $600.00 4 $2,400.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $1,200.00 2 $1,200.00

11 4040-108-D-0 SUMP PUMP TAP EACH $500.00 2 $1,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $1,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

12 5020-108-E-0 VALVE BOX ADJUSTMENT EACH $500.00 1 $500.00 1 $500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

13 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SINGLE FLAT EACH $7,000.00 4 $28,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 4 $28,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

14 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, DOUBLE FLAT EACH $8,500.00 1 $8,500.00 1 $8,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

15 6010-108-H-0 REMOVAL OF STORM MANHOLES AND INTAKES EACH $1,500.00 4 $6,000.00 1 $1,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 3 $4,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

16 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $75.00 2073 $155,475.00 516 $38,700.00 243 $18,225.00 358 $26,850.00 427 $32,025.00 299 $22,425.00 230 $17,250.00

17 7010-108-E-0 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 2.5 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. $85.00 212 $18,020.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 65 $5,525.00 0 $0.00 68 $5,780.00 79 $6,715.00

18 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. $30.00 255 $7,650.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 78 $2,340.00 10 $300.00 82 $2,460.00 85 $2,550.00

19 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. $30.00 87 $2,610.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 25 $750.00 0 $0.00 34 $1,020.00 28 $840.00

20 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $135.00 87 $11,745.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 25 $3,375.00 0 $0.00 34 $4,590.00 28 $3,780.00

21 7030-108-H-0 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $135.00 255 $34,425.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 78 $10,530.00 10 $1,350.00 82 $11,070.00 85 $11,475.00

22 7030-108-H-2 GRANULAR SURFACING, 1-INCH ROADSTONE S.Y. $40.00 31 $1,240.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 10 $400.00 0 $0.00 21 $840.00 0 $0.00

23 7040-108-A-0 PATCH, 7" P.C.C., FULL DEPTH, "M" MIX S.Y. $300.00 44 $13,200.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 44 $13,200.00

24 7040-108-C-0 PATCH, PARTIAL DEPTH, HMA (ST) SURFACE, 1/2", PG58-28S TONS $250.00 7 $1,750.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 7 $1,750.00

25 7040-108-H-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL S.Y. $18.00 1232 $22,176.00 516 $9,288.00 243 $4,374.00 0 $0.00 429 $7,722.00 0 $0.00 44 $792.00

26 7040-108-I-0 CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL L.F. $25.00 212 $5,300.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 65 $1,625.00 0 $0.00 68 $1,700.00 79 $1,975.00

27 7080-10-8-B-0 ENGINEERING FABRIC S.Y. $8.00 808 $6,464.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 350 $2,800.00 458 $3,664.00

28 7080-108-D-0 STORAGE AGGREGATE S.Y. $25.00 1028 $25,700.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 514 $12,850.00 514 $12,850.00

29 7080-108-E-0 FILTER AGGREGATE S.Y. $15.00 198 $2,970.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 99 $1,485.00 99 $1,485.00

30 7080-108-F-0 PERMEABLE INTERLOCKING PAVERS, CLAY BRICK S.Y. $145.00 254 $36,830.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 127 $18,415.00 127 $18,415.00

31 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. $10,000.00 1 $10,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

32 9020-108-A-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. $2.25 3712 $8,352.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 1000 $2,250.00 0 $0.00 1346 $3,028.50 1366 $3,073.50

33 9040-108-D-1A WATTLES, 9IN. STRAW L.F. $10.00 100 $1,000.00 100 $1,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

34 9040-108-D-2A WATTLES, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL L.F. $5.00 100 $500.00 100 $500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

35 9040-108-T-1 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, INSTALLATION EACH $375.00 5 $1,875.00 1 $375.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 4 $1,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

36 9040-108-T-2 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EACH $90.00 5 $450.00 1 $90.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 4 $360.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

37 11020-108-A-0 MOBILIZATION L.S. $25,000.00 1 $25,000.00 1 $25,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
38 11050-108-A-0 CONCRETE WASHOUT LS $3,000.00 1 $3,000.00 1 $3,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

$582,973.00 TOTAL= $147,825.00 TOTAL= $27,960.00 TOTAL= $62,481.00 TOTAL= $113,706.00 TOTAL= $104,509.50 TOTAL= $116,491.50TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

14TH & 15TH - CLAY & 

WASHINGTON

1ST & 2ND - WASHINGTON 

& MAIN (N & S)

11TH & 12TH - BLUFF & 

GROVE

1ST & 2ND - WASHINGTON & 

MAIN (E & W)

5TH & 6TH - FRANKLILN & 

CLAY
3RD & 4TH - MAIN & STATE

2024 ALLEY RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NO. RC - 000 - 3335

FINAL ESTIMATE OF COSTS

AND QUANTITIES

April 4,  2024

175

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

––  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: April 5, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: 2024 Sidewalk Assessment Project 
  City Project Number: SW-000-3324 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2024 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 6. 
 
We recommend setting Monday, May 6, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for the 
public hearing on this project, and Friday, May 10, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. as the date and 
time for receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be 
published by Friday, April 19, 2024. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for 
distribution to contractors on Friday, April 19th, 2024, allowing for three (3) weeks of review 
before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the repair of deficient sidewalk adjacent to various property owners. 
The project will repair the deficient sidewalk for the adjacent property owner and assess 
the cost of repair to the property owner. Once the repair has been completed, the 
Engineering Division will submit a bill to the City Clerk. The City Clerk will then send notice 
to the adjacent property owner. The adjacent property owner will have 30 days to pay the 
bill without interest or penalty. If the adjacent property owner doesn’t pay the bill in 30 
days, the cost of repair will be applied to the property owners’ property taxes and spread 
over 5 years with interest. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $549,610.50.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2024 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

176

Item 23.



ITEM ITEM UNIT TOTAL

NO. CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. $250.00 108.20 27,050.00$     

2 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. $90.00 1792.00 161,280.00$   

3 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.Y. $125.00 1310.30 163,787.50$   

4 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.Y. $250.00 481.70 120,425.00$   

5 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. $40,000.00 1.00 40,000.00$     

6 9010-108-B-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. $6.00 6178.00 37,068.00$     

$549,610.50TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

2024 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NO. SW - 000 - 3324

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

177

Item 23.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members  

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: April 5, 2024 

 SUBJECT: FY2024 Budget Amendment 

 
Please find attached the notice for a FY2024 budget amendment.  This budget 
amendment is necessary due to timing of various projects and participation in various 
grants.     
 
The Code of Iowa requires that the City have a public hearing and I would request 
that the hearing be set for May 6, 2024. 
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
       Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 
 
 
  
  

178

Item 24.



179

Item 24.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Laudick, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: April 8, 2024 

   SUBJECT:   CFU Board of Trustees Pay Adjustment 
 
 

Please find attached a letter dated March 13, 2024, from Steven Bernard, General 

Manager/CEO of CFU to Mayor Laudick regarding a proposed ordinance amendment to adjust 

Board of Trustees pay. 

 

Also attached please find the proposed ordinance amendment.  Note that the amendment is 

slightly different than stated in Mr. Bernard’s letter, but the changes are for clarification purposes 

only and dates and amounts were not changed from the original request.  CFU has approved 

this version. 

 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.   

 

Thank you.  

180

Item 25.



181

Item 25.



 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 
 

       AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 2-451, COMPENSATION, OF DIVISION 6, 
UTILITIES BOARD OF TRUSTEES, OF ARTICLE IV, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS, OF 
CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW SECTION 2-451, 
COMPENSATION, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADJUSTING THE COMPENSATION OF 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARDS OF TRUSTEES. 

 
       BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
       1.     Section 1.  Section 2-451, Compensation, of Division 6, Utilities Board of Trustees, of 

Article IV, Boards and Commissions, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a 
new Section 2-451, Compensation, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-451. Compensation. 

Trustees of the board of trustees shall each receive the sum of $68.75$50.00 per month as 
compensation from each of the water, electric, gas and communication utilities, beginning July 
1, 2024.  Beginning March 1, 2025, a compensation adjustment shall be awarded equal to the 
percent change in the federal consumer price index for the prior calendar year that precedes the 
effective date of the adjustment, to be applied monthly for the ensuing year.  The index used 
shall be the Historical Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers, (CPI-U) U.S. city 
average, All items – December annual average percent change from the previous year as 
published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.  If the percent change is negative, no 
adjustment shall be awarded.  

(Code 2017, § 2-300; Ord. No. 2773, § 1, 7-23-2012) 

 

INTRODUCED: ________________________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: __________________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: __________________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION: __________________________________________ 

 
                                                                               ______________________________ 
                                                                               Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

182

Item 25.



183

Item 26.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
DAILY INVOICES FOR 04/15/24 COUNCIL MEETING



184

Item 26.



185

Item 26.



186

Item 26.



187

Item 26.



188

Item 26.



189

Item 26.



190

Item 26.



191

Item 26.



192

Item 26.



193

Item 26.



194

Item 26.



195

Item 26.



196

Item 26.



197

Item 26.



198

Item 26.



199

Item 26.



200

Item 26.



201

Item 26.



202

Item 26.



203

Item 26.



204

Item 26.



205

Item 26.



206

Item 26.



207

Item 26.



208

Item 26.



209

Item 26.



210

Item 26.



211

Item 26.



212

Item 26.



213

Item 26.



214

Item 26.



215

Item 26.



216

Item 26.



217

Item 26.



218

Item 26.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
COUNCIL INVOICES FOR 04/15/24 MEETING



219

Item 26.



220

Item 26.



221

Item 26.



222

Item 26.



223

Item 26.



224

Item 26.



225

Item 26.



226

Item 26.



227

Item 26.



228

Item 26.



229

Item 26.



230

Item 26.



231

Item 26.



232

Item 26.



233

Item 26.



234

Item 26.



235

Item 26.



236

Item 26.



237

Item 26.



238

Item 26.



239

Item 26.



240

Item 26.



241

Item 26.



242

Item 26.



243

Item 26.



244

Item 26.



245

Item 26.



246

Item 26.



247

Item 26.



248

Item 26.



249

Item 26.



250

Item 26.



251

Item 26.



252

Item 26.



253

Item 26.



254

Item 26.



255

Item 26.



256

Item 26.



257

Item 26.



258

Item 26.



259

Item 26.



260

Item 26.



261

Item 26.



262

Item 26.



263

Item 26.



264

Item 26.



265

Item 26.



266

Item 26.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes-04/01/24
	240401MINUTES

	Item 2.	PH-FY25 Budget Hearing
	1-budget hearing council #2.mem
	2-budget adoption resolution
	3-FY25 Budget state form_001

	Item 3.	PH-Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project
	1. Memo PH - Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Expansion Project
	2. Estimate

	Item 4.	Ord.#3051-Floodplain Regulations
	1. CC Memo TA24-001.Flood Ordiance Amendments 3-4-24
	2. Redline Amended Code Language
	3. Flood Plain Map Adoption Ord 1.3051

	Item 5.	Ord.#3052-Code of Ordinances
	1-memocccodeord-2024 (1) (1)
	2-Ord.3052-Adoption of Code 2024

	Item 6.	Ord.#3053-Center St. Speed Limit
	1. Memo - Center Street Speed Limit Ordinance
	2. Center Street Speed Limit Ord.3053
	3. Sec._23_300.___Lawful_speed_limits_established REDLINE

	Item 7.	Ord.#3054-Art & Culture Center
	1. Memo ACB Ordinance 3-25-24
	2. Art  Culture Center Ordinance (002)
	3. Art  Culture Center Ordinance

	Item 8.	Ord.#3055-Visitor &Tourism Board I
	1. Memo -TourismOrdinance 3-25-2024
	2. Tourism Board Ordinances
	3. Tourism Board Ordinances

	Item 9.	Ord.#3056-Visitor & Tourism Board II
	1. Memo Tourism Ordinance II 3-25-2024
	2. Tourism Board Ordinances II
	3. Tourism Board Ordinances II

	Item 10.	Ord.#3057-Code Amendments: Visitor & Tourism Board III
	1. Memo Tourism Ordinance III 3-25-2024
	2. Tourism Board Ordinances III
	3. Tourism Board Ordiannces - III

	Item 11.	Special Meeting Minutes - 04/01/24
	240401MINUTES-SPECIAL

	Item 12.	Civil Service
	Civil CAD-GIS Tech CertList4-2024 stakeholder file
	Constr Projects Mgr-CertList 4-2024

	Item 13.	Tobacco Violation - Prime Mart
	1. Order Accepting Agreement
	2. Settlement Agreement
	3. Notice of Hearing, 1st Violation 3-28-24
	4. Hearing Complaint, 1st Violation 3-28-24

	Item 14.	Retail alcohol 4-15-24
	Retail alcohol 4-15-24

	Item 16.	Local Housing Trust Fund
	CF Housing Trust Support Final

	Item 17.	College Hill Urban Revitalization Application - 2007 College Street
	1_Council memo for 04-15-24 meeting
	2_2007 College St Map
	3_2007 College St Application
	Res Approving College HIll Tax Abatement Application

	Item 18.	LAFORGE, LLC High Quality Jobs Program Application
	1_Council Memo for LaForge, LLC IEDA HQJP Application
	2_1824 Lincoln St Map
	3_Laforge, LLC Business Financial Assistance Application
	Resolution Authorizing Application to IEDA 04-15-24

	Item 19.	Grant Agreement: CAT - Community Natatorium Project
	1. Council Memo grant approval 4-4-24
	2. Resolution Approving Agreement
	3. Grant Agreement-Exhibit A

	Item 20.	Main St. Recons. Project - Supp. Agreement No. 1
	1. SA Memo - Main Street Reconstruction Project (6th Street to University Avenue)
	2. Supplemental Agreement 1_RC-000-3283_Main St

	Item 21.	Prairie Parkway & Viking Rd.-Supp. Agreement No 1
	0106_001
	2. Supplemental Agreement

	Item 22.	Set PH-2024 Alley Reconstruction
	1. Memo PSE - 2024 Alley Reconstruction
	2. 2024 Alley Cost Estimate

	Item 23.	Set PH-2024 Sidewalk Assessment
	1. Memo PSE - 2024 Sidewalk Assessment Project
	2. 2024 Sidewalk Assessment Estimate

	Item 24.	Set PH-FY2024 Budget Amendment
	Budget Amend #2 Set Pub Hear Memo
	2 FY24 Budget Amend No 2 PH Notice

	Item 25.	Ord.-Chapter 2, Administration, Utilities Board
	1. Memo to Mayor Council CFU Board pay ordinance
	2. Steve Bernard letter
	3. CFU Board Ordinance

	Item 26.	Bills and Claims-04/15/24
	1 Daily Invoices 041524
	2 Council Invoices 041524

	Bottom

